
LEP - Transport for Lancashire Committee

Wednesday, 10th January, 2018 in Committee Room 'D' - The Henry 
Bolingbroke Room, County Hall, Preston, at 2.00 pm

Agenda

Part I (Items Publicly Available)

1. Welcome and Apologies for Absence  

2. Declarations of Interest  

3. Minutes of the meeting held on 20th November 2017  (Pages 1 - 4)

4. Matters Arising  

5. Transport for Lancashire - Proposed Amendments to the LEP Assurance 
Framework  (Pages 5 - 12)

6. Preston Western Distributor Conditional Approval Application  (Pages 13 
- 40)

7. Preston Railway Station  (Pages 41 - 46)

8. Department for Transport Consultation: Shaping the Future of England's 
Strategic Roads  (Pages 47 - 50)

9. Reporting to Lancashire Enterprise Partnership Board  

10. Any Other Business  
11. Date of Next Meeting  

The next Transport for Lancashire Committee meeting is scheduled to be held 
on Wednesday 4th April 2018 at 2pm in Committee Room 'D' - The Henry 
Bolingbroke Room, County Hall, Preston.





LEP - Transport for Lancashire Committee

Minutes of the Meeting held on Monday, 20th November, 2017 at 10.00 
am at the Committee Room 'C' - The Duke of Lancaster Room, County 
Hall, Preston

Present

County Councillor Geoff Driver CBE (Chairman)

Graham Cowley Councillor Phil Riley

Also in attendance

Brian Bailey, Director of  Strategy and Funding, Blackburn with Darwen Council
Mike Cliffe, Strategic Transport Manager, Blackburn with Darwen Council
Alan Cavill, Director of Place, Blackpool Council 
Jeremy Walker, Transport Policy Manager, Blackpool Council
County Councillor Michael Green, Cabinet Member for Economic Development, 
Environment and Planning  
Martin Kelly, Director of Economic Development, Lancashire County Council
Mike Kirby, Director Corporate Commissioning
Kathryn Molloy, Head of Service, LEP Co-ordination, Lancashire County Council
Dave Colbert, Specialist Advisor, Transportation, Lancashire County Council
Cath Rawcliffe, Democratic Services Officer, Lancashire County Council 

1.  Welcome and Apologies for Absence

The Chair, County Councillor Geoff Driver CBE, Lancashire County Council, 
welcomed all to the meeting.  

Apologies were noted from Councillor Fred Jackson.

Officer apologies were noted from Richard Perry, Department for Transport and 
Bruce Parker and Mike Sinnott, Highways England.

2.  Declarations of Interest

Councillor Riley declared a non-pecuniary interest in item 5 as a member of 
Blackburn with Darwen Council.

Page 1

Agenda Item 3



3.  Minutes of the meeting held on 21 June 2017

Resolved:  The minutes of the meeting held on 21 June 2017 be approved as an 
accurate record and signed by the Chair.

4.  Matters Arising

There were no matters arising from the Minutes.

5.  Darwen East Development Corridor Funding Application

James Steer from the consultants Jacobs presented a report on the independent 
assurance of the Strategic Outline Business Case in support of the Darwen East 
Development Corridor funding application (DEDC). 

The scheme comprised a series of junction improvements together with a short 
length of new road on the eastern side of the town that would unlock land to 
enable the future development of new housing and improve access to local 
employment opportunities identified within Blackburn with Darwen Council’s 
adopted Local Plan.  

The project was predicted to deliver very high value for money with a benefit to 
cost ratio of 7.85 and had the potential to generate a further £0.55m of wider 
economic benefits per annum, arising from the development of employment sites 
that the scheme would unlock. The total cost for the scheme was expected to be 
£3.32m, with the LEP contributing £2.5m through the Lancashire Growth Deal.  It 
was reported orally that BwDBC's S151 officer had provided a letter confirming 
the council's commitment to provide a local contribution to fund the balance 
between the allocated Growth Deal Funding and the scheme cost. 

Having undertaken an independent assessment of the Strategic Outline Business 
Case on behalf of the Lancashire Enterprise Partnership (LEP), Jacobs advised 
that they were satisfied that the project had been developed to the expected 
standard and recommended that the project to granted ‘Full Approval’ status, to 
enable construction to begin in February 2018

The Committee was reminded that Transport for Lancashire's Terms of 
Reference, part of the LEP's Assurance Framework, require that the LEP should 
not fund scheme development and preparation costs nor any post scheme 
monitoring and evaluation. However, given the DEDC is predominantly about 
unlocking development sites and therefore promoting economic growth, the 
Committee agreed to waive this requirement for the scheme in question pending 
a review of the Committee's Terms of Reference. 

Page 2



Resolved: 

1. Pending a review of the Transport for Lancashire Committee's Terms of 
Reference, to waive the requirement of the LEP Assurance Framework not to 
fund scheme development and preparation costs given the scheme's clearly 
defined economic growth objectives.

2. That the Lancashire Enterprise Partnership Board be recommended to grant 
the scheme £2.5m Growth Deal funding.

6.  Blackpool Tramway Extension Full Approval Application

Peter Hibbert from the consultants Jacobs presented a report on the independent 
assurance of the Full Business Case in support of the Blackpool Tramway 
Extension funding application. 

The Committee was informed that the scheme would provide a new link from the 
current tramway on the Promenade adjacent to the North Pier along Talbot Road 
to Blackpool North station. 

The project was predicted to deliver high value for money with a benefit to cost 
ratio of 3.07.  In addition, the scheme was expected to generate between 11,500 
and 20,000 additional visitor trips to Blackpool per annum, generating between 
£29.5m and £50.9m of Gross Value Added (GVA) benefits over the 60-year 
project appraisal period.

The total project outturn cost was expected to be £23.4m, with the LEP 
contributing £16.4m through the Lancashire Growth Deal.  It was noted that 
Blackpool Council's S151 officer had provided a letter confirming the council's 
commitment to fund the balance together with any overspend.  

Having undertaken an independent assessment of the Full Business Case 
submitted by Blackpool Council, Jacobs confirmed they were satisfied that the 
project had been developed to the expected standard and that Blackpool Council 
had addressed all of the conditions attached at Conditional Approval in April 
2016.

It was therefore recommended that, subject to the Secretary of State confirming 
the Transport and Works Act Order, the scheme be granted ‘Full Approval’ status 
to enable construction to take place between April 2018 and July 2019.

Resolved: That the Lancashire Enterprise Partnership Board be recommended 
to grant the scheme Full Approval.

Page 3



7.  Transport for the North - Strategic Transport Plan

Robin Miller-Stott, Senior Policy and Strategy Officer, Transport for the North 
(TfN), gave a presentation on the current status of TfN and its Strategic Transport 
Plan. 

The Committee was informed that with effect from April 2018, TfN would become 
the first Sub-National Transport Body in England, tasked with developing a 
Strategic Transport Plan to prioritise infrastructure investment in the North to drive 
transformational economic growth. 

It was noted that the Rail North association of local authorities would become part 
of TfN, and would continue to work with the Department for Transport to co-
manage the Northern and Trans-Pennine Express rail franchises.

The Committee was informed that TfN's Strategic Transport Plan (STP) would 
have a wide ranging and ambitious scope, setting out connectivity priorities 
across the North that would encourage and support business growth and help 
transform economic performance up to 2050.  The STP includes a number of 
Strategic Development Corridors with the aim of delivering required 
improvements on both the road and rail networks through a multi-modal 
investment programme. 

The Committee commented on TfN's 'emerging vision for the Northern 
Powerhouse Rail Network', pointing out the importance of existing rail links and 
other geographic connectivity priorities that reflect economic links across the 
North.  The Committee also considered that it was important for the plan to 
recognise the importance of enabling people, as well as goods, to move rapidly 
and reliably around the North.  

Robin welcomed the feedback and advised that TfN would consider these issues 
and others raised through the forthcoming statutory three month consultation that 
will start in early January 2018 prior to finalising the STP in the New Year. 

The Committee noted that a further progress report would be presented to the 
Transport for Lancashire Committee once the STP had been finalised.

Resolved:  That the Transport for the North update be noted.

8.  Any Other Business

None.

9.  Date of Next Meeting

It was noted that the next meeting would be held on Wednesday 10 January 2018 
at 2pm in Cabinet Room 'D' - The Henry Bolingbroke Room, County Hall, 
Preston.

Page 4



LEP – Sub Committee

LEP - Transport for Lancashire Committee

Private and Confidential: NO

Wednesday, 10 January 2018

Transport for Lancashire - Proposed Amendments to the LEP Assurance 
Framework
(Appendix 'A' – Accountability Framework – Transport (extracted from Assurance 
Framework) refers)

Report Author: Kathryn Molloy, Tel: 01772 538790, 
kathryn.molloy@lancashire.gov.uk

Executive Summary

This report requests that Transport for Lancashire (TfL) considers proposed 
amendments to the Accountability Framework for Transport schemes as set out in 
the LEP's Assurance Framework.

Should the Committee approve the proposed changes, these will be reflected in the 
LEP's Assurance Framework which is currently being reviewed and updated by 
officers. The revised Assurance Framework will be presented to the LEP Board on 
30 January for consideration and approval.

Recommendation

The Transport for Lancashire Committee is asked to:

(i) Consider the contents of this report; 

(ii) Approve the proposed changes to the Accountability Framework for 
Transport schemes as set out in the LEP's Assurance Framework; and

(iii) Recommend the proposed changes are included with the LEP's 
Assurance Framework which is currently being reviewed and updated by 
officers and will be presented to the LEP Board on 30 January 2018 for 
consideration and approval.

Page 5

Agenda Item 5



Background and Advice 

Transport for Lancashire's current Terms of Reference, part of the LEP's Assurance 
Framework that came into force in February 2017, state that the LEP will not fund 
scheme development and preparation costs nor any post scheme monitoring and 
evaluation.  This is inconsistent with the other two themes of the Growth Deal 
programme covering skills and economic projects, where scheme preparation costs 
are permissible as part of the local contribution.

It is therefore proposed to amend the Terms of Reference to allow scheme sponsors 
to use a proportion of Growth Deal funding to support scheme preparation and 
development.  It is further proposed that the minimum 10% local contribution scheme 
sponsors are required to provide can also include scheme preparation and 
development costs in addition to capital costs as currently approved.  The proposed 
changes in respect of transport schemes will bring the management and delivery of 
the Growth Deal programme and scheme delivery into alignment.  Local 
contributions will continue to be considered on a scheme by scheme basis to ensure 
that value for money is achieved.

Should the Committee approve the proposed changes, they will be reflected in an 
update of the LEP's Assurance Framework, which is currently under review by 
officers.  The revised Assurance Framework will be presented to the LEP Board at 
its meeting on 30th January 2018 for consideration and approval.

Page 6



Appendix 'A'

THE LANCASHIRE ENTERPRISE PARTNERSHIP
ACCOUNTABILITY FRAMEWORK – TRANSPORT

Scheme Eligibility
The Lancashire Enterprise Partnership will only consider funding clearly defined schemes that are 
priorities in approved highways and transport masterplans.  Such schemes could include packages of 
measures aimed at solving specific problems/issues that when combined support delivery of the 
Strategic Economic Plan, but subject to the funding only being available for capital expenditure.  In all 
cases, funding will only contribute towards the capital cost of a scheme, including construction costs, 
land acquisition costs and Part 1 Claims under the Land and Compensation Act 1973.  The Lancashire 
Enterprise Partnership will not fund scheme development and preparation costs nor any post scheme 
monitoring and evaluation.

The Lancashire Enterprise Partnership will consider funding exceptional structural maintenance 
schemes including bridges, tunnels, retaining walls and culverts with a minimum cost threshold of 
£2m.  Decisions will reflect the economic importance of the structure(s) and the adverse effects failure 
to maintain would have.  Local highway authorities will need to provide supporting information 
including the importance of the route, existing or likelihood of imminent weight restrictions, existing 
or potential diversionary routes and details of the work that they will need to undertake if restrictions 
are not to be imposed.  Local highway authorities will also need to demonstrate why a scheme is not 
deliverable from other funding sources.

The Lancashire Enterprise Partnership will consider funding schemes on the networks of the Highways 
Agency and Network Rail, including in adjacent Local Enterprise Partnership areas, where such 
schemes contribute towards the delivery of the objectives of the Strategic Economic Plan and where 
funding is unlikely to be available through standard Highways Agency and Network Rail programmes.  
In such circumstances, the Lancashire Enterprise Partnership will hold early discussions with the 
Highways Agency and Network Rail, and where appropriate, adjacent Local Enterprise Partnerships, 
to enable their views to be taken into account.  Where any rail schemes affect train services, the 
Lancashire Enterprise Partnership will also consult the relevant Train Operating Company and DfT Rail.

Local Funding Contribution
For all schemes, the Lancashire Economic Partnership will require scheme promoters to provide an 
absolute minimum 10% contribution towards total scheme construction cost and 100% of any increase 
in cost following the granting of Programme Entry.  The 10% minimum local funding contribution 
cannot be waived by the LEP. Local transport authorities will therefore need to explore all potential 
sources of funding, including district council, European, developer / private sector and third party, in 
line with Department for Transport expectations.

The scheme promoter's Section 151 officer must underwrite the promoter's ability to fund the local 
contribution and any subsequent cost increases following the granting of Programme Entry.  Scheme 
promoters must adhere to Department for Transport requirements as set out in WebTAG, the 
Department for Transport's web-based guidance on the conduct of transport studies, to ensure a 
consistent approach to variables such as construction inflation, the application of optimism bias and 
allowance for risk in the derivation of outturn costs.

Scheme Assessment and Appraisal
The Lancashire Enterprise Partnership will apply a proportionate approach to the development of 
transport business cases in line with the Business Case Development Process Chart attached.  For 

Page 7



Appendix 'A'

example, the transport business case for a £20m scheme will require significantly more detail than 
that for a £2m scheme.  As a guide:

 For individual schemes requiring a Local Growth Fund contribution of greater than £5m and 
packages of small-scale measures requiring a Local Growth Fund Contribution of greater than 
£10m, the Lancashire Enterprise Partnership will require submission of Outline/Full Business 
Cases that demonstrate high value for money.

 For individual schemes requiring a Local Growth Fund contribution of less than £5m, a 
Strategic Outline Business Case will suffice, although a scheme will still need to demonstrate 
high value for money.

 For packages of small-scale measures requiring a Local Growth Fund contribution of up to 
£10m where no individual scheme has a capital cost greater than £5m, a Strategic Outline 
Business Case will suffice, although the package will still need to demonstrate high value for 
money.

For the avoidance of doubt, scheme promoters should seek advice from Transport for Lancashire at 
the earliest opportunity.

Scheme Approvals Process
For individual schemes requiring a Local Growth Fund contribution of greater than £5m and packages 
of small-scale measures requiring a Local Growth Fund Contribution of greater than £10m, the 
Lancashire Enterprise Partnership will adopt a three stage approvals process based on modified 
current practice.  Schemes on the networks of either the Highways Agency or Network Rail may 
undergo a different approval process.

Stage 1: Programme Entry
Programme Entry indicates the Lancashire Enterprise Partnership's intention to provide funding to a 
scheme or package following acceptance of a Strategic Outline Business Case and its inclusion in the 
Strategic Economic Plan.  Programme Entry is not an absolute commitment, but intended to provide 
sufficient assurance for the promoting authority to embark on Outline Business Case development.

Stage 2: Conditional Approval
Conditional Approval indicates the Lancashire Enterprise Partnership's acceptance of an Outline 
Business Case demonstrating high value for money.  It is intended to provide the expectation of 
funding necessary for the promoting authority to apply for any statutory powers that may be required 
such as Transport and Works Act powers, highways orders, planning consents, compulsory purchase 
orders etc.

The Lancashire Enterprise Partnership will only grant Conditional Approval on the basis that there will 
be no material changes to the scheme's scope, cost, design, expected benefits and value for money.  
The granting of Conditional Approval may be subject to a small and limited number of conditions.

Stage 3: Full Approval
Full Approval indicates the Lancashire Enterprise Partnership's acceptance of a Full Transport Business 
Case and approval to proceed to implementation.  It occurs when all necessary statutory powers are 
in place and any necessary conditions specified at Conditional Approval have been satisfied.  Scheme 
promoters can only apply for Full Approval once procurement has taken place and a preferred bidder 
with firm and final prices selected.  Once granted, Full Approval enables the scheme promoter to 
commence construction and draw down grant funds.

Page 8



Appendix 'A'

For individual schemes requiring a Local Growth Fund contribution of less than £5m or packages of 
small-scale measures requiring a Local Growth Fund contribution of up to £10m where no individual 
scheme has a capital cost greater than £5m, acceptance of a Strategic Outline Business Case indicates 
the Lancashire Enterprise Partnership's approval to proceed to implementation.  This enables the 
scheme promoter to commence works and draw down grant funds.

The Transport Business Case
The Lancashire Enterprise Partnership requires all transport business cases to adhere to the key 
principles of the Department for Transport's Transport Business Case guidance (January 2013) and be 
fully compliant with the approach to modelling appraisal and analysis set out in WebTAG at the time 
they submit the transport business case.  This will ensure that scheme assessment follows current best 
practice.

Each transport business case will need to include a clear statement of scheme objectives and the 
specific outcomes it is intended to deliver.  Scheme promoters must base central case assessments on 
forecasts that are consistent with the latest version of the National Trip End Model (NTEM), the 
Department for Transport's planning dataset.  As a minimum, Transport for Lancashire will expect to 
consider central case assessments as part of its scrutiny of transport business cases.

Outline Business Cases submitted for Conditional Approval must include a statement confirming that 
WebTAG has been followed.  An Appraisal Summary Table (AST) will need to accompany submissions 
and demonstrate that the scheme offers high value for money.  Scheme promoters must ensure that 
the Senior Responsible Owner signs off each AST as true and accurate.

Transport for Lancashire will scrutinise individual scheme business cases on behalf of the Lancashire 
Enterprise Partnership and advise accordingly.  In order to secure the required expertise for transport 
business case scrutiny without Transport for Lancashire having to develop this capability and capacity 
in-house at considerable cost, Transport for Lancashire will utilise independent specialist consultants.  
For schemes where Lancashire County Council is not the scheme promoter, Transport for Lancashire 
will utilise Lancashire County Council's framework consultants to undertake transport business case 
scrutiny.  For schemes promoted by Lancashire County Council, Transport for Lancashire will procure 
independent advice.  This will ensure complete separation between scheme promoters and their own 
framework consultants and the appraisal team and decision makers.

To guarantee quality assurance, consultants appointed to undertake transport business case scrutiny 
will need to demonstrate significant previous experience in this field, for example, the successful 
preparation of major scheme business cases, and be fully conversant with Department for Transport 
appraisal and assessment processes such as WebTAG.  As Accountable Body for the Lancashire 
Enterprise Partnership, Lancashire County Council will ensure that officers with appropriate technical 
experience of this type of work oversee the selection process.

The officer with overall responsibility for transport business case scrutiny and for advising Transport 
for Lancashire is Mike Kirby, Director of Commissioning, Lancashire County Council.  This officer will 
have delegated authority to procure and appoint external consultants to assist Transport for 
Lancashire with independent business case scrutiny.

Where necessary, consultants appointed to review individual transport business cases and supporting 
analyses will be able to request the scheme promoter to provide further analysis and information to 
enable full and proper consideration of the scheme and to ensure that the appraisal and supporting 
data and assumptions are sufficiently robust and fit for purpose.  Consultants will provide Transport 
for Lancashire with a formal report on each submitted transport business case specifying the outcome 

Page 9



Appendix 'A'

of their assessment against the five case model set out in the Department for Transport's Transport 
Business Case guidance.

Value for Money
The Lancashire Enterprise Partnership will only approve schemes demonstrating high value for money, 
with a benefit to cost ratio (BCR) of greater than 2.  Only in exceptional cases will the Lancashire 
Enterprise Partnership consider schemes with a BCR of less than 2.  In such circumstances, the scheme 
promoter will need to demonstrate significant additional monetised or non-monetised benefits that 
are important in relation to stated strategic objectives, for example, schemes necessary to facilitate 
significant land development for employment or housing, and guarantee a minimum 30% local 
contribution.

Transport for Lancashire will provide the Lancashire Enterprise Partnership with a Value for Money 
assessment in line with published Department for Transport WebTAG guidance at each approval 
stage.  As part of the independent scrutiny of a scheme's transport business case, Transport for 
Lancashire will require the consultant responsible to confirm that the Value for Money assessment 
aligns with the Department for Transport's Advice Note for Local Transport Decision Makers published 
in December 2013.  Neil Kissock the County Council's Director of Financial Resources (and Section 151 
officer) will sign off all Value for Money assessments as true and accurate.  The Director of Financial 
Resources is not involved with scheme development and promotion at Lancashire County Council, 
thus avoiding any potential conflict of interest with regard to schemes promoted by the County 
Council.

A scheme must satisfy the Lancashire Enterprise Partnership's value for money requirements at both 
Conditional and Full Approval stages.  Where a scheme fails to deliver a minimum benefit to cost ratio 
of greater than 2, the Lancashire Enterprise Partnership will seek independent professional advice on 
the magnitude of the stated additional benefits prior to determining whether these benefits are 
sufficient to offset this requirement.

Programme and Risk Management
In order to secure effective management of the Lancashire Enterprise Partnership's transport 
investment programme, Transport for Lancashire will set up a transparent process for monitoring 
progress on scheme delivery and spend and for informing responses to changed circumstances 
including scheme slippage and changes to scheme scope and/or costs.

Where there are issues of cost increases and/or delays to delivery, the Lancashire Enterprise 
Partnership will consider the following when deciding whether to continue to support a scheme:

 whether the cost increases and/or delays to delivery were unforeseen and unavoidable;
 whether the scheme promoter is willing and/or able to fund any cost increase;
 whether additional funding has been sought from other sources;
 whether the scale of the scheme can be reduced to fit the available budget;
 the impact of any cost increase on a scheme's value for money as reflected by its benefit to 

cost ratio; and
 whether any delay in scheme delivery can be accommodated within the programme.

The Lancashire Enterprise Partnership ultimately reserves the right to withdraw its support for a 
scheme.

The Lancashire Enterprise Partnership will require scheme promoters to submit a quarterly monitoring 
report (QMR) to Transport for Lancashire setting out progress on scheme preparation and/or delivery.  

Page 10



Appendix 'A'

This will include a requirement for a quantified risk assessment.  Transport for Lancashire will receive 
quarterly update reports outlining progress with delivery of the transport investment programme.  It 
will collate the QMR information from scheme promoters, indicate progress against key milestones / 
deliverables and highlight any risks.  A RAG (red/amber/green) rating will identify those schemes that 
are at risk of not meeting their programme objectives and that need urgent attention.

Monitoring and Evaluation
The Lancashire Enterprise Partnership will put in place a mechanism to ensure that it monitors and 
evaluates schemes in accordance with the appropriate Department for Transport guidance, and will 
publish the results on its website.

Page 11



Appendix 'A'

Business Case Development Process Chart

Page 12



LEP – Sub Committee

LEP - Transport for Lancashire Committee

Private and Confidential: No

Wednesday, 10 January 2018

Preston Western Distributor Conditional Approval Application
(Appendix 'A' refers)

Report Author: Dave Colbert, Tel: 01772 534501, Specialist Advisor Transport Planning
dave.colbert@lancashire.gov.uk

Executive Summary

The Preston Western Distributor comprises a new 4.3km dual carriageway road that 
will connect the A583 Preston to Blackpool road at Lea with the M55 at a new 
Junction 2 near Bartle.  It is by far the largest transport project in the Lancashire 
Growth Deal programme and key to unlocking the North West Preston strategic 
housing location (circa 5,000 new homes).  Lancashire County Council has 
submitted an Outline Business Case to the Lancashire Enterprise Partnership (LEP) 
for Conditional Approval.  The consultants Atkins have undertaken an independent 
assessment of the Outline Business Case on behalf of the LEP.  Atkins are satisfied 
that the project has been developed to the expected standard in most areas and 
recommend that Conditional Approval be granted to enable the scheme to progress 
to Full Business Case submission.

Recommendation

The Transport for Lancashire Committee is asked to consider the attached Outline 
Business Case report prepared by Atkins and recommend that the LEP Board grant 
the scheme Conditional Approval at its meeting to be held on Tuesday 30th January 
2018.

Background and Advice

The Preston Western Distributor comprises a new 4.3km dual carriageway road that 
will connect the A583 Preston to Blackpool road at Lea with the M55 at a new 
Junction 2 near Bartle.  It is by far the largest transport project in the Lancashire 
Growth Deal programme and a key project within the Preston, South Ribble and 
Lancashire City Deal agreed with the Government in September 2013.

The scheme will support delivery of the North West Preston strategic housing 
location (circa 5,000 new homes) and improve access between the Enterprise Zone 

Page 13

Agenda Item 6



site at Warton and the Strategic Road Network.  It will also facilitate construction of a 
new 'parkway' station at Cottam on the Preston to Blackpool North railway line, 
taking advantage of ongoing electrification and route upgrade work to provide rail-
based park and ride opportunities to Preston/Manchester/Liverpool and Blackpool.  
The additional capacity will help alleviate peak hour congestion in Preston City 
Centre affecting east-west routes and facilitate the introduction of bus priority 
measures, public realm enhancements and improvements to prioritise and promote 
walking and cycling along existing road corridors.

The scheme promoter, Lancashire County Council, has submitted an Outline 
Business Case to the Lancashire Enterprise Partnership (LEP) for Conditional 
Approval.  The granting of Conditional Approval is intended to provide the 
expectation of funding necessary for the promoting authority to apply for any 
statutory powers that may be required to deliver a scheme, for example, Transport 
and Works Act powers, highways orders, planning consents and/or compulsory 
purchase orders.

Conditional Approval indicates the LEP's acceptance of an Outline Business Case 
demonstrating high value for money.  In accordance with its Assurance Framework, 
the LEP will only grant Conditional Approval on the basis that there will be no 
material changes to the scheme's scope, cost, design, expected benefits and value 
for money.  The granting of Conditional Approval may be subject to a small and 
limited number of conditions.

The current projected outturn capital cost of the Preston Western Distributor as set 
out in the Outline Business Case is £161.6m; this is somewhat higher than the 
£104.5m reported at Programme Entry.  The Programme Entry estimate was based 
on the best information available at the time and in advance of any site investigation 
or design work.  It was also at 2013 Quarter 2 prices and excluded any adjustment 
for inflation.  The scheme includes the construction of two major viaducts each 250m 
in length; one is particularly costly due to the extremely poor ground conditions 
identified through detailed geotechnical investigations and subsequent requirement 
for deep piling.  There are additional costs for the diversion of the Hodder Aqueduct 
(crossed twice) and the risks associated with working in hazardous environments 
over waterways, railways and motorways.

The County Council has undertaken a value engineering exercise taking advantage 
of the Early Contractor Involvement approach adopted, which identified a significant 
number of opportunities to reduced costs.  These have informed the current 
projected outturn cost.  Value engineering will continue through the detailed design 
stage for both road and structures.  A 15% Optimism Bias uplift is included as 
recommended by the Department for Transport's Transport Appraisal Guidance.

The agreed capital contribution from the Local Growth Fund through the Lancashire 
Growth Deal remains fixed at £58m.  Highways England has also confirmed its £25m 
contribution towards the cost of the new M55 Junction 2.  The Preston, South Ribble 
and Lancashire City Deal will fund the balance, with Lancashire County Council 
confirming that it will underwrite the impact of any timing difference in relation to 

Page 14



receipt of City Deal funding and any subsequent scheme cost increase.  The current 
local contribution amounts to just under 50% of the total projected outturn cost.

The consultants Atkins have undertaken an independent assessment of the Outline 
Business Case on behalf of the LEP.  Atkins are satisfied that the project has been 
developed to the expected standard in most areas and recommend that Conditional 
Approval be granted to enable the scheme to progress to Full Business Case 
submission.  The scheme is predicted to deliver high value for money with a benefit 
to cost ratio of 2.29; it also has the potential to generate an additional £144m of GVA 
for the local economy over the 60 year evaluation period, principally through 
unlocked development.  Over 5,000 new homes are dependent on or unlocked by 
the Preston Western Distributor.

Atkins have advised that a number of outstanding issues will need to be addressed 
as part of the Full Business Case submission, including securing the land required 
for construction of the scheme, finalising the target price with the contractor and 
undertaking further modelling work to comply with new Department for Transport 
guidance.  Final 'sign-off' of the Full Business Case will also require the approval of 
the Secretary of State for Transport.

Page 15



Page 16



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Preston Western 
Distributor  
Outline Business Case - Independent Review 
Lancashire County Council 

21 December 2017 
  

 

Page 17



Preston Western Distributor  
Outline Business Case - Independent Review 

 

 
 

  
Atkins   Version 3.0 I December 2017  
 

Notice 

This document and its contents have been prepared and are intended solely for Lancashire County Council’s 
information and use in relation to the Independent Review of the Outline Business Case of the Preston Western 
Distributor. 

Atkins assumes no responsibility to any other party in respect of or arising out of or in connection with this 
document and/or its contents. 

This document has 24 pages including the cover. 

Document history 

Job number:   Document ref:   

Revision Purpose description Originated Checked Reviewed Authorised Date 

Rev 1.0 Draft Report RH NS HF NS 18/12/17 

Rev 2.0 Submission to LCC RH NS HF NS 19/12/17 

Rev 3.0 Submission to LCC RH NS HF NS 21/12/17 

       

       

       

       

       

       

 

   

Page 18



Preston Western Distributor  
Outline Business Case - Independent Review 

 

 
 

  
Atkins   Version 3.0 I December 2017  
 

Table of contents 

Chapter Pages 

1. Introduction 1 
1.1. Overview 1 
1.2. Methodology 1 
1.3. Structure of Report 4 

2. Scheme Review 5 
2.1. Scheme Description 5 
2.2. Strategic Case 5 
2.3. Economic Case 5 
2.4. Financial Case 6 
2.5. Commercial Case 7 
2.6. Management Case 7 
2.7. Review Summary 7 

Appendices 9 

Appendix A. Assessment Scores 10 
A.1. Summary 10 
A.2. Strategic Case 12 
A.3. Economic Case 14 
A.4. Financial Case 17 
A.5. Commercial Case 18 
A.6. Management Case 19 
 

Tables 
Table 1-1 Ranking mechanism of the scrutiny framework 1 
Table 1-2 Aspects of the scrutiny framework 2 
Table 2-1 Review summary table 8 
 

Page 19



Preston Western Distributor  
Outline Business Case - Independent Review 

 

 
 

  
Atkins   Version 3.0 I December 2017 1 
 

1. Introduction 

1.1. Overview 

Atkins has been commissioned by Lancashire County Council to undertake an independent review of their 
business case submissions which will be put forward to the Lancashire Enterprise Partnership (LEP) to seek 
and obtain funding via the Local Growth Deal. 

We have created a scrutiny framework to review the business case submissions which has been developed 
based on the Department for Transport business case guidance. The guidance details how each case model 
is expected to address certain aspects of the scheme in the submission. Each case model within the business 
case has been assessed against those aspects and judged on how well they are addressed. 

In line with the LEP’s Accountability Framework, it is recognised that a proportionate approach to the 
development of the business cases under review has been applied in the submitted business case documents. 
For schemes where the total costs are less than £5m, only a strategic outline business case has been 
developed, however, it is acknowledged that as these schemes are still seeking funding in full, some elements 
of outline and full business case submissions are required. 

This document presents our review of the Preston Western Distributor Outline Business Case. 

1.2. Methodology 

The developed scrutiny framework has been based on a colour coded system that provides a transparent 
mechanism in assessing each case. Each individual aspect of the case model is given a colour of green, amber 
or red depending on: 

• How well it has been addressed in the submission; 

• How relevant it is in relation to the scheme; and 

• How well it meets the acceptability criteria set out in the DfT guidance and LEP Accountability Framework. 
 
Table 1-1 Ranking mechanism of the scrutiny framework 

Element under scrutiny Colour/ 
Score 

Description 

Requirements fully met  1 
No issues of note with the submission. Project to progress as 
scheduled. 

Requirements substantially 
met  

2 
Minor issues exist with the submission. Project to progress and 
issues to be resolved. 

Requirements partially met  
3 

Medium issues exist with the submission. Project to progress 
and issues to be resolved urgently. 

Requirements not met  
4 

Critical issues exist with the submission. Project to be 
suspended whilst issues are resolved. 

The schemes receive an overall colour and rating to show the general acceptability level of each case. The 
individual aspects to be assessed align with the outline business case template provided by the Lancashire 
Enterprise Partnership under the five case models, as shown in Table 1-2. 

 

 

Page 20



Preston Western Distributor  
Outline Business Case - Independent Review 

 

 
 

  
Atkins   Version 3.0 I December 2017 2 
 

Table 1-2 Aspects of the scrutiny framework 

Case Element Aspects for scrutiny 

Strategic 
Case 

Strategic context 
• Aims and objectives of the promoting organisation 

• What is driving the need to change at a strategic level 

Challenge or 
opportunity to be 
addressed 

• The scope of work is clearly defined 

• All the current and future problems are identified 

• Key characteristics of the challenge to be addressed and the 
opportunity presented 

Strategic objectives 

• A clear set of scheme objectives are defined 

• The objectives are well supported by evidence of problems 
and issues 

• Alignment with local, sub/regional and national development 
policy are established 

• The objectives are pragmatic and achievable 

Achieving success 

• The existing arrangements cannot be better utilised without 
implementing fundamental changes 

• Experience is drawn from past project of similar nature 

• Scheme dependencies on any committed development and 
other adjacent major schemes are explored 

• Likely impact of “Do Nothing” scenario is presented 

• There is clear evidence to show the urgency of the scheme 

Delivery constraints 
• Risks identified though the consultation process 

• Synergy with other relevant schemes 

Stakeholders 

• List of stakeholders consulted or to be consulted in the course 
of the business case development 

• A clear communication strategy 

• Summarised outcomes of any consultation undertaken 

Strategic assessment of 
alternative options 

• List of all the alternative options considered 

• The optioneering report is consistent with the defined scope 
and objectives 

• Option sifting process 

• Assessment of opportunities and constraints of the options 

• Detailed selection process of “Preferred”, “Next Best” and 
“Low Cost” option 

Economic 
Case 

Value for money • Compliance with DfT WebTAG guidance 

Economic assumptions 

• WebTAG version 

• Price base year of the cost 

• Market price 

• Discount rate and year 

• Forecast year 

• Opening year 

• Appraisal period 

• Traffic growth 

• Safety assumptions 

• Environmental assumptions 

Sensitivity and risk 
profile 

• Cost of alternative options 

• Cost allocation profile 

• Inflation 

• Quantified Risk Assessment (QRA) 

• Optimism Bias consideration and justification 

• Consistency of cost with other scheme of similar size and 
nature 

• Operating cost 

• Maintenance cost 

• Renewal cost 

Page 21



Preston Western Distributor  
Outline Business Case - Independent Review 

 

 
 

  
Atkins   Version 3.0 I December 2017 3 
 

Case Element Aspects for scrutiny 

Value for money 
statement 

• Benefit Cost Ratio (BCR) 

• Net Present Value (NPV) 

• VfM category 

Appraisal summary 
table 

• Economic assessment (TUBA) input and output information 

• Annualisation approach 

• Assessment of safety benefits 

• Assessment of social benefits 

• Assessment of environmental impact 

• Assessment of distributional impact  

• Cost to broad transport budget 

• Indirect tax revenue 

Financial 
Case 

Affordability 
assessment 

• Assessment of affordability of all options 

Financial costs 

• Construction period 

• Opening year 

• Inflation 

• Base cost 

• Possible funding requirement 

• Quantitative risk assessment 

• Justification of optimism bias 

• Adjusted scheme cost 

Financial cost allocation 

• Required funding by year 

• Funding mechanism 

• Available fund by different sources 

• Alternative sources of fund 

Financial risk 
• Quantitative risk assessment 

• Justification of optimism bias 

Financial risk 
management 

• Justification of funding profile by different sources 

Financial accountability • Funding risk allocation and ownership. 

Commercial 
Case 

Commercial case • Approach taken to assess commercial viability 

Procurement strategy 

• Procurement strategy 

• Identified key stages of the procurement process 

• Alternative procurement strategy 

• Detail of the payment mechanism 

Identification of risk • Identification of risk 

Risk allocation • Allocation of risk 

Contract management 

• Procurement mechanism and its programme 

• Risk allocation and transfer 

• Promoter’s procurement experience 

• Benchmark with other procurement processes of similar 
schemes 

Management 
Case 

Governance 
• Project promoter is established in the document 

• Clear management structure for the scheme delivery 

Go/No-go and decision 
milestones 

• Key decision points identified. 

Project programme 
• Project delivery programme, key milestones and 

dependencies 

Assurance and 
approvals plan 

• Reporting protocol and subsequent approval procedure 

• Assurance of resource availability and allocation 

Communications and 
stakeholder 
management 

• Communication strategy between different parties 

• History of stakeholder consultation and the outcome 

Page 22



Preston Western Distributor  
Outline Business Case - Independent Review 

 

 
 

  
Atkins   Version 3.0 I December 2017 4 
 

Case Element Aspects for scrutiny 

Programme/ project 
reporting 

• Project delivery programme, key milestones and 
dependencies 

• Reporting risks and programme delivery 

Risk management 
strategy 

• Reporting procedure of risks 

• Delivery risks mitigation measures 

• Risk ownership 

• Benchmark of risk mitigation measures from similar past 
projects 

• Any contingency measures required for risk mitigation 

Monitoring and 
evaluation 

• Approach to managing realisation of scheme benefit 

• Approach to post scheme implementation evaluation 

• Post implementation cost consideration 

Project management • Overall approach to project management 

1.3. Structure of Report 

Following this introduction, this report contains the summary of the review in Chapter 2, structured as follows: 

• Scheme description; 

• Strategic case review; 

• Economic case review; 

• Financial case review; 

• Commercial case review; 

• Management case review; and 

• Review summary 
 

Appendix A contains the detailed notes under each case which have formed the overall review of this scheme. 

  

Page 23



Preston Western Distributor  
Outline Business Case - Independent Review 

 

 
 

  
Atkins   Version 3.0 I December 2017 5 
 

2. Scheme Review 

2.1. Scheme Description 

An outline business case has been developed for the Preston Western Distributor (PWD) scheme.  

The proposed scheme is a key component of the programme of measures set out in the Central Lancashire 
Highways and Transportation Masterplan (CLHTM) that collectively will support the scale of development set 
out in the approved Central Lancashire Core Strategy and will mitigate its impact on the transport network. 

The PWD preferred option consists of construction of a new 4.3km dual carriageway road to support delivery 
of the North West Preston strategic housing location (5,000 new homes) and improve access to both the 
Strategic Road Network (SRN) in Northwest Preston, and to/from the Enterprise Zone at Warton. 

The scheme includes a new all move junction with the M55 (Junction 2). It also provides direct links into existing 
Cottam development areas, the potential Cottam Parkway Rail Station and direct connection to the East West 
Link (EWL) Road. The PWD scheme will also include a combined cycleway footway along the eastern side of 
the proposed scheme between the A583 and the proposed EWL Road which would tie into existing footpaths 
and cycle facilities. 

As part of the scheme several minor roads (e.g. Lea Road, Sidgreaves Lane) will be altered in the provision 
of a new roundabout to connect north/south and to/from the EWL Road. The EWL Road provides the spine 
through the Strategy Housing Development and therefore provides connectivity to the PWD of the 5,000 new 
homes proposed. Additionally, it connects the PWD scheme directly with existing highway network at Lightfoot 
Lane. The EWL Road is a separate scheme and not included in the PWD scheme. 

The scheme is one of the four major highways schemes in the Preston, South Ribble and Lancashire City Deal 
and is in Transport for Lancashire’s (TfL’s) agreed and prioritised Investment Programme. 

The outline business case for this scheme has been developed by Lancashire County Council and was 
submitted for this independent review in December 2017. The scheme promoter is Lancashire County Council. 

2.2. Strategic Case 

The strategic case presents a clear description and case for the scheme, linking into the aims and objectives 
of the Lancashire Strategic Economic Plan. The scope for the project is clear, which has allowed for the 
identification of potential constraints and interested stakeholder demands. The scheme has strong and broad 
political support and has been subject to comprehensive consultation through the planning process. 

A planning application for the scheme was submitted in May 2016, and an update on its current status would 
be beneficial to this case. The scheme is interdependent with the EWL Road, which is a vital component in 
relation to housing growth. Further details regarding the delivery of this link would be of benefit to this case. 

A total of twenty options have been considered for this scheme, and following an initial sifting process and 
then a secondary sift, which assessed each option against the supporting objectives and potential scheme 
costs, a preferred scheme was identified. 

2.3. Economic Case 

The Value for Money (VfM) statement reports a BCR of 2.29, which is classified as 'High VfM' by the 
Department for Transport. 

The benefits for the scheme have been derived from a SATURN model known as Central Lancashire Transport 
Model (CLTM), which has a base year of 2013 and includes AM, Inter Peak and PM peak time periods.The 
base year model generally accords with the required WebTAG criteria. 

Page 24



Preston Western Distributor  
Outline Business Case - Independent Review 

 

 
 

  
Atkins   Version 3.0 I December 2017 6 
 

The forecast traffic models have been developed for 2019 and 2041 as the schemes’ opening and design 
years respectively. The opening year has subsequently moved to 2022 with 2037 being expected to be the 
new design year. The traffic growth used to construct future years’ trip matrices is based on forecasts in the 
prevailing National Trip End Model (NTEM) 6.2 for cars and Road Traffic Forecasts (RTF) 2015 for goods 
vehicles. There have been newer TEMPRO 7.2 guidance as well as new values of time and vehicle operating 
costs since completion of the scheme forecasts. A series of sensitivity tests have been undertaken to 
investigate the effect on the scheme BCR including travel demand variation, new guidance and the inclusion 
of trips generated by dependent development. The reported BCRs for these tests showed a range of 2.01 to 
2.66. It is expected that the Final Business Case (FBC) will be produced based fully on prevailing guidance at 
the time of submission.  

A total of 20 options as stated above were identified in the business case (including the preferred option). The 
economic appraisal was however limited to the Core and Low-Cost options. 

The Present Value of Costs (PVC) for the proposed schemes is £138.48m which includes construction, risk 
allocation and maintenance costs as well as an allowance of Optimism bias of 15%. The Present Value of 
Benefits (PVB) is reported as £317m with £273.8m resulting from benefits associated with user time savings, 
changes in vehicle operating costs and indirect tax revenues. The remaining net benefit of £43.2m arises from 
other monetised transport elements including construction and maintenance delay benefits; accident savings; 
air; noise and greenhouse savings.   

The increase in the GVA of the local economy associated with the proposed scheme has been derived as 
£144.1 million over the 60-year period which consists of £104.5m from unlocking development; £28m from 
Agglomeration and £10.8m output change in competitive markets. 

A full AST table has been provided with all scheme impacts and these have been assessed. Over 5,000 new 
homes are dependent on, or unlocked by, the PWD scheme. These form the basis for calculating the indirect 
jobs created to support the new residents, which shows a forecast increase in GVA to the local economy of 
£144.1m over a 60-year period that can be directly related to the PWD scheme. This comprises £104.5m in 
unlocked development, £23m in agglomeration (Preston), £5.8m in agglomeration (Warton), and £10.8m 
output change in imperfectly competitive markets.   

The Distributional Impact (DI) assessment showed that all income quintiles will receive a positive impact for 
the User Benefits and Air Quality. The most deprived areas will experience a positive impact on personal 
affordability. Most income groups will benefit from decrease in noise levels with the scheme in place. Children 
are expected to receive a slight beneficial effect from reduction in noise levels and accidents and improvement 
in air quality. There will also be a reduced number of accidents and thus casualties among the older people, 
pedestrians and cyclists. 

2.4. Financial Case 

The scheme delivery budget is estimated to be £161.6m, with £58m to be funded by the Lancashire Growth 
Deal, £25m to be funded by Highways England’s Route Improvement Strategy (RIS) and £89.9m committed 
as part of the Preston, South Ribble and Lancashire City Deal. The scheme delivery budget includes £8.433m 
QRA, although it is considered that as a consequence of the risk register appearing to include the EWL Road 
risks may be overstated, and 15% optimism bias as required by WebTAG guidance. 

Assurance is provided via a letter from Highways England regarding commitment of RIS funds, and the scheme 
promoter’s Section 151 officer has confirmed the Council’s ability to underwrite the impact of any timing 
difference in relation to receipt of City Deal funding and any subsequent scheme cost increase. 

The submission details the key financial risks associated with the delivery of the scheme, although the risk 
register appears to contain risks for both the PWD and EWL Road and therefore may overestimate the overall 
risks for the PWD scheme. 

A spend profile has been presented appropriately within the case, although it could benefit from more details 
regarding the parties on whom the costs fall within the profile. 

Page 25



Preston Western Distributor  
Outline Business Case - Independent Review 

 

 
 

  
Atkins   Version 3.0 I December 2017 7 
 

2.5. Commercial Case 

The commercial case sets out a clear procurement strategy based on the existing procurement routes used 
within Lancashire County Council. An Early Contractor involvement (ECI) approach has been selected and the 
rationale for selecting NEC3 Option C (Target Cost and Activity Schedule) is sound, with financial risks shared 
between client and contractor in an agreed proportion. The procurement strategy is supported by a letter from 
the scheme promoters Section 151 Officer. 

A clear project programme has been presented as part of the submission including procurement and contract 
timescales. Programme dates are also presented in the management case in a slightly different format and 
these could benefit from being standardised. 

Risk assessment and allocation are presented in the risk register, which is under joint ownership as part of the 
ECI approach.  

2.6. Management Case 

The management case provides a clear governance and organisational structure suitable for managing this 
scheme, including technical discipline leads. The responsibilities of the named individuals are substantially 
defined and the reporting mechanisms and lines of communication are clear including the procedures for 
obtaining scheme approval. 

A detailed risk register presents the quantification and management of risk, although it appears that this could 
be overestimated due to the inclusion of risk for the EWL Road. The communication strategy is currently being 
developed for the scheme and will be made available in advance of the funding decision. The PWD scheme 
has already been the subject of significant consultation to date through the planning process. 

A logic map has been developed which provides an overview of how the outcome of the scheme will be 
realised, and a simple outline monitoring and evaluation plan has been defined to monitor the scheme 
objectives. This will be updated and made available in advance of any funding decision. 

2.7. Review Summary 

This review represents Atkins' independent scrutiny of the Outline Business Case (OBC) for the Preston 
Western Distributor scheme.  The scheme, which is being promoted by Lancashire County Council, is seeking 
Conditional Approval from the Lancashire Local Enterprise Partnership (LEP) and funding via the Local Growth 
Deal.  

The submission demonstrates that the project has been developed to the expected standard in most areas. A 
number of outstanding issues will need to be addressed in advance of the Full Business Case submission.  
These include securing the land required for the construction of the scheme, finalising the target price with the 
proposed contractor, modelling to be undertaken using new guidance and obtaining 'sign off' from the DfT. 

Atkins has been in dialogue with the scheme promoter and their transport consultants as the scheme has 
progressed and the business case (and supporting documents) have been subject to a series of updates 
culminating in the final submission document received on 7th December 2017. 

Overall our recommendation is that the Conditional Approval for this project be granted, with the ability to draw 
down funds conditional on an updated Full Business Case being submitted for approval. 

The review summary table is presented overleaf in Table 2-1. 

 

 

 

Page 26



Preston Western Distributor  
Outline Business Case - Independent Review 

 

 
 

  
Atkins   Version 3.0 I December 2017 8 
 

 

Table 2-1 Review summary table 

Case Score Summary 

Strategic Case 2 Requirements substantially met 

Economic Case 2 Requirements substantially met 

Financial Case 2 Requirements substantially met 

Commercial Case 2 Requirements substantially met 

Management Case 3 Requirements partially met 

Overall Score 2 Requirements substantially met 

 

Page 27



 

 

Appendices 
 

Page 28



Preston Western Distributor 
Outline Business Case - Independent Review 

 

 

  
Atkins   Version 3.0 I December 2017 10 
 

Appendix A. Assessment Scores 

A.1. Summary 

 

 
Continued overleaf. 

Project Title: Scheme Promoter:

Document Reviewed: Permission Sought:

Date of Submission: Date of Review:

LEP Accountability 

Framework:

Scheme Description:

Overall Score: 2 1

Requirements fully met - No issues of note 

with the submission, project to progress as 

scheduled. 

2

Requirements substantially met - Minor 

issues exist with the submission.  Project to 

progress and issues to be resolved.

3

Requirements partially met - Medium 

issues exist with the submission.  Project to 

progress and issues to be resolved urgently.

Benefit to Cost Ratio (BCR) 4

Requirements not met - Critical issues exist 

with the submission.  Project to be 

suspended whilst issues are resolved.

Case Status Comments

Strategic Case 2

The Strategic Case demonstrates how the scheme aligns with National Planning Policies, sub-national planning policies and local planning policies including the Central Lancashire 

Core Strategy, Preston Local Plan 2012-2026, North West Preston Masterplan, and Preston, South Ribble and Lancashire City Deal.

The Strategic Case provide evidence of the problems that support the need for the intervention. Problems are identified in relation to the operation of the network.  The business 

case provides evidence of low average traffic speeds during the AM and PM peak periods impacting on key arterial and radial routes to and from the City.  Existing congestion levels 

also impact on the Warton Enterprise Zone reducing the overall accessibility of this important site.  This has led to the identification of three overarching objectives relating to 

unlocking housing development land, improving access to the Warton Enterprise Zone and reducing congestion.

A planning application for the scheme was submitted in May 2016, however, no details are provided with regard to the current status of the application.  Details of land ownership 

required for the completion of the scheme are not articulated.  The scheme has interdependencies with the provision of the East-West Link Road and the Strategic Case would 

benefit from further details.

 

The main stakeholder groups with an interest in the scheme have been identified. The scheme has strong and broad political support in LCC and has been subject to a 

comprehensive consultation as part of the planning application process.  

A total of 20 options are identified in the business case (including the preferred option).  As part of an initial sifting process these were reduced to seven.  A secondary sift then took 

place which assessed each option against the proposed secondary objectives and potential scheme costs resulting in the identification of the preferred scheme.

 INDEPENDENT REVIEW

SUMMARY SHEET

Preston Western Distributor Lancashire County Council

Business Case Conditional Approval

07/12/2017 18/12/2017

The scheme is seeking Conditional Approval from the LEP and funding towards its £58m cost via the Local Growth Deal.  In line with the LEP’s Accountability Framework, an Outline Business Case 

is required in order to seek Conditional Approval and draw down funds.

The PWD preferred option consists of the construction of a new 4.3 km dual carriageway road, between the M55 and the A583/A5085 Blackpool Road/Riversway,  to support delivery of the 

North West Preston strategic housing location (more than 5,000 dwellings) and improve access to both the Strategic Road Network in Northwest Preston, and to/from the Enterprise Zone at 

Warton.

Overall Comments:

This review represents Atkins' independent scrutiny of the Outline Business Case for the Preston Western Distributor scheme.  It does not 

represent a detailed validation of technical analyses.  The scheme, which is being promoted by Lancashire County Council, is seeking Conditional  

Approval from the Lancashire Local Enterprise Partnership (LEP) and funding via the Local Growth Deal. Whilst the OBC contains the key 

information for seeking the Conditional Approval from the C&W LEP there are a number of outstanding issues which need to be addressed in 

advance of the Final Business Case submission. These include securing the land required for the construction of the scheme, finalising the target 

price with the proposed contractor, Modelling to be undertaken using new guidance and obtaining 'sign off' from the DfT.

Atkins has been in dialogue with the scheme promoter and their transport consultants, Jacobs as the scheme has progressed, including face-to-

face meetings.  Accordingly, the business case (and supporting documents) has been subject to a series of updates culminating in the final 

submission document received on 7th December 2017. 

Atkins is satisfied that the project has been developed to the expected standard in most areas.  Overall, it is our recommendation that 

Conditional Approval for this project be granted.  

The Value for Money (VfM) statement reports a BCR of 2.29, which is classified as 'High VfM' by the Department for Transport.

In addition, the Outline Business Case identifies an increase in the GVA of the local economy associated with the proposed scheme which 

amounts to  £144.1 million over the 60-year period which consists of £104.5m from unlocking development; £28m from Agglomeration and 

£10.8m output change in competitive markets.

Economic Case 2

The Value for Money (VfM) statement reports a BCR of 2.29, which is classified as 'High VfM' by the Department for Transport.

The benefits for the scheme have been derived from a SATURN model known as Central Lancashire Transport Model (CLTM), which has a base year of 2013 and includes AM, Inter 

Peak and PM peak time periods. A Local Model Validation Report (LMVR) has been produced, setting out the development and validation of the base year model, which has been 

used as basis to assess the PWD scheme. The base year model generally accords with the required WebTAG criteria.

The forecast traffic models have been developed for 2019 and 2041 as the schemes’ opening and design years respectively. The opening year has subsequently moved to 2022 with 

2037 being expected to be the new design year. The traffic growth used to construct future years’ trip matrices is based on forecasts in the prevailing National Trip End Model 

(NTEM) 6.2 for cars and Road Traffic Forecasts (RTF) 2015 for goods vehicles. Subsequent to development of the forecast models, new guidance has emerged with NTEM 7.2 and 

July 2017 Data Book which the latter provides updated values of time and vehicle operating cost.  The forecast assignments have been developed using fixed demand approach as 

opposed to Variable Demand Modelling (VDM). This was based on results of a test undertaken by the scheme promoter which showed that the proposed scheme may not cause 

inducing new demand or release suppressed demand in the core model area. DfT who is a major stakeholder on this scheme needs to express its view on this aspect of the 

modelling. It is a possibility that DfT would ask for impact of VDM to be investigated on the modelling results prior to submission of the PWD Final Business Case (FBC). A series of 

sensitivity tests have been undertaken to investigate the effect on the scheme BCR including travel demand variation, new guidance and the inclusion of trips generated by 

dependent development. The reported BCRs for these tests showed a range of 2.01 to 2.66.

A total of 20 options were identified in the business case (including the preferred option).  These were subject to two sifting stages initially against the scheme primary objectives 

and feasibility/deliverability criteria.  A total of 7 options were then taken forward from this initial process and assessed each option against the proposed secondary objectives and 

potential scheme costs.   The economic appraisal was however limited to the Core and Low-Cost options.

The Present Value of Costs (PVC) for the proposed schemes is £138.48m over a 60-year period which includes construction, risk allocation and maintenance costs. An Optimism bias 

of 15% has been included in the cost calculations for economic appraisal. The Present Value of Benefits (PVB) is reported as £317m. Out of total PVB, the benefits associated with 

user time savings, changes in vehicle operating costs, indirect tax revenues amount to £273.8m. The remaining net benefit of £43.2m arises from other monetised transport 

elements including construction and maintenance delay benefits; accident savings; air; noise and greenhouse savings.  

The increase in the GVA of the local economy associated with the proposed scheme has been derived as £144.1 million over the 60-year period which consists of £104.5m from 

unlocking development; £28m from Agglomeration and £10.8m output change in competitive markets.

The environmental and social impacts associated with PWD have been assessed either quantitively or qualitatively. These have included Noise, Air Quality, Greenhouse Gases, 

Landscape, Townscape, Historic Environment, Biodiversity, Water Environment, Physical Activity, Journey Quality, and Severance.  The majority of scheme benefits are associated 

with travel time savings for road users. There would be improvement in Safety, Noise and Air Quality. Disbenefits are reported from greenhouse gases emissions and increase in 

vehicle operating costs as well as a small decrease in indirect tax revenue. The reported non-monetised impacts of the scheme are normally shown to be beneficial or neutral except 

for slight adverse effect on the local landscape, historic environment and water environment and a moderate adverse impact on biodiversity.

Page 29



Preston Western Distributor 
Outline Business Case - Independent Review 

 

 
 

  
Atkins   Version 3.0 I December 2017 11 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

Financial Case 2

Commercial Case 2

Management Case 3

Sign-Off

Reviewer's Signature: Date: 18/12/2017

The case sets out the governance structure and project delivery team and the key reporting lines for the programme management and delivery of the scheme. There are 

inconsistencies in the project programme within the management and commercial cases that need addressing, along with the realistic timescale for making the CPO. Planning 

permission has been granted, but the scheme is dependent on a CPO and SRO and details around the impacts are not clearly set out in the business case. Details of the reporting, 

approvals and assurance process are clearly set out. Limited evidence on scheme delivery has been supplied, and there is no information on how lessons learned have been applied 

to the delivery of this scheme. There is also limited information on the risk management strategy, although a quantified risk register is included that provides details of the risks, 

owners and mitigation measures. The communications strategy for the PWD is still currently being prepared and needs to be provided ahead of Full Business Case. A logic map has 

been provided as part of the monitoring and evaluation plan, but it is unclear how supporting objectives 4 and 8 fit into the logic map. In regard to the monitoring and evaluation 

plan, this sets out the metrics to be measured, but it is unclear how each of the metrics is directly related to measuring if the primary and supporting objectives have been met. The 

plan also sets out that a value for money assessment will be undertaken upon completion of the scheme, but no details on how this process will be done are included. 

The case sets out the scheme cost, which has been subject to some independent validation. It includes base costs, risk adjustment at the most robust estimate and 15% optimism 

bias in line with WebTAG guidance. A spend profile has been included which sets out year on year costs and breakdown by type of cost, but does not specify the parties on whom 

they fall. The key financial risks have been identified, an evaluation process has been undertaken along with a Monte Carlo Risk Assessment and the 80% probability risk cost has 

been applied to the base costs for robustness.  However, the risk register appears to contain risks for both the PWD and the EWLR and may therefore overestimate the overall risks 

for the PDW scheme. Funding has been identified for the full scheme costs and evidence has been provided of third party funds, including Highways England RIS monies. No 

alternative funding has been identified and the LGF monies are subject to having a good business case with high value for money. LCC will cover any increase in funding and this has 

been agreed in the form of a letter provided by the Section 151 Officer. Limited information is available on the long-term financial sustainability of the scheme and affordability 

including any ongoing costs for operation, maintenance and major capital renewals.

The case sets out the anticipated procurement strategy and lists the benefits of using this approach along with bodies that widely recognised this as the delivery mechanism for 

major civil engineering works. It is unclear exactly how the contract is set up, although the case refers to a 3 phase basis and early termination without penalty if value for money is 

not obtained at all times. Prompt and fair payment mechanisms are referenced, but no details of this are set out. The anticipated payment option/mechanism is stated for Phase 3, 

but will need to be confirmed prior to Full Business Case. Project Procurement Milestones are set out, but there is some uncertainty around the COP Public Inquiry timescales and a 

question around how realistic it is to set out the CPO to LCC Cabinet the day after the OBC is submitted to the LEP. A risk workshop has been held and informed a risk register that is 

a live document with joint ownership, which should lead to cost efficiencies. Contract management details are limited and the timescales are uncertain due to the season of 

commencement, this will need updating ahead of Full Business Case. The procurement strategy is supported by a letter from the Section 151 Officer, which although it states that 

the strategy is well established and will protect the authority from unnecessary risk and challenge, while looking to secure value for money through MEAT evaluation criteria, does 

not specifically reference the contract and early termination arrangements.

Page 30



Preston Western Distributor 
Outline Business Case - Independent Review 

 

 
 

  
Atkins   Version 3.0 I December 2017 12 
 

A.2. Strategic Case 

 
 

Continued overleaf. 

Date of Review: 

2 1
Requirements fully met - No issues of note 

with the submission.

2
Requirements substantially met - Minor 

issues exist with the submission.  

3
Requirements partially met - Medium 

issues exist with the submission.  

4
Requirements not met - Critical issues exist 

with the submission.  

Ref Item Status Comments

S1 Is there a clear description 

of the components of the 

scheme and how it fits 

with the aims and 

objectives of the LEP, Local 

Authorities and DfT?

Requirements 

Fully Met

S2 Have the problem(s) the 

scheme will be addressing 

been clearly identified – 

including evidence of the 

extent of the problem(s), 

specific barriers / 

challenges, and how the 

scheme will overcome 

them (including the scale 

of impact)

Requirements 

Substantially 

Met

S3 Has the impact of not 

progressing the scheme 

been set out, including 

supporting evidence? Is 

there adequate rationale 

to support why the scheme 

is needed now?

Requirements 

Fully Met

S4 Are there a clearly defined 

set of objectives for the 

scheme to address the 

problem(s) identified?

Requirements 

Fully Met

S5 Are there any remaining 

high level internal/external 

constraints or other factors 

that present a material risk 

to the delivery of this 

scheme?

Requirements 

Substantially 

Met

S6 Have any inter-

dependencies which may 

affect the success of the 

scheme been identified?

Requirements 

Partially Met

S7 Are any links with other 

schemes clear?

Requirements 

Partially Met

S8 Have the main stakeholder 

groups and their 

contribution to the project 

been clearly defined?  This 

should include any 

potential constraints or 

conflicts between 

stakeholders groups.

Requirements 

Substantially 

Met

Without an intervention, evidence indicates that all the identified problems will be exacerbated in the future and will be constraining investment and growth in Central Lancashire.

The business case also makes clear that a high number new homes (5,000+) will not be realised in the absence of the scheme.  

Problems are identified in relation to the operation of the network.  The business case provides evidence of low average traffic speeds during the AM and PM peak periods impacting on key 

arterial and radial routes to and from the City.  Existing congestion levels also impact on the Warton Enterprise Zone reducing the overall accessibility of this important site.  The business 

case also states that busses in the study area suffer from poor journey time reliability, although this is predicated on the basis of general congestion rather that direct evidence related to bus 

journey time data.  It is also indicated that accident rates on key routes are higher than the national average and that congestion is adding to air pollution. 

It is also identified that there is insufficient highway capacity to release the proposed scale of housing in the area and the growth of employment sites are being constrained by traffic 

congestion levels.  Planning conditions are in place that require upgrades to the highway capacity in order to release large scale housing developments in the area.

The Strategic Case evidence does not include details on the scale of the forecast impact of the scheme relative to the Do Minimum scenario and therefore what impact it would have on the 

identified problems.

Preston Western Distributor

It is stated in the Strategic Case that a planning application was submitted for the scheme in May 2016, however, the current status of this application is not stated although this is referred 

to in other Cases.  No details are provided as to whether or not all the land required to construct the scheme has been secured although it is referenced in other cases that a CPO is required 

in order to advance the scheme. 

The scheme is interdependent with the East-West Link Road (EWLR) which provides the spine through the Strategic Housing Development and therefore provides the connectivity to the 

PWD of the 5000+ houses proposed. It is stated that the  funding arrangements for the two schemes are different  and therefore for the purpose of the PWD OBC it is assumed that the 

EWLR is a separate scheme.  

The delivery of the EWLR is a vital component in the successful release of the housing in in the area and the Strategic Case would have benefited from further details regarding the delivery 

of this link.

The main stakeholder groups with an interest in the scheme have been identified. The scheme has strong and broad political support in LCC and has been subject to a comprehensive 

consultation as part of the planning application process.  Where concerns were expressed mitigation measures have been incorporated into the design where possible.  However, details of 

any constraints or conflicts between stakeholder groups are not provided.

 INDEPENDENT REVIEW

Project Title: 

Atkins Comments:

The proposed scheme includes the following:

• A new 4.5km dual carriageway road between the M55 and the A583/A5085 Blackpool Road/Riversway;

• Construction of a new all moves junction with the M55 (Junction 2);

• Construction of a new roundabout at the A583/A5085 Blackpool Road/Riversway;

• Two new roundabouts for connection with the Cottam Link Road and the East-West Link Road (EWLR); and

• Construction of the Cottam Link Road providing access into Cottam development areas and the potential Cottam.

The Strategic Case demonstrates how the scheme aligns with National Planning Policies, sub-national planning policies and local planning policies including the Central Lancashire Core 

Strategy, Preston Local Plan 2012-2026, North West Preston Masterplan, and Preston, South Ribble and Lancashire City Deal.

Conditional Approval 18/12/2017

STRATEGIC CASE

See comments above.

Three primary objectives have been identified for the scheme, which are stated as being critical to delivery of the Central Lancashire Core Strategy, as follows:

1. Support local economic growth by unlocking housing development in North West Preston;

2. Improve access of the Warton Enterprise Zone to strategic road network and wider labour market catchment; and

3. Reduce congestion and associated delays on the arterial and radial routes within the Preston urban area.

These are supplemented by a further eight supporting objectives which relate to the identified problems. 

The Strategic Case demonstrates how the scheme aligns with National Planning Policies, sub-national planning policies and local planning policies including 

the Central Lancashire Core Strategy, Preston Local Plan 2012-2026, North West Preston Masterplan, and Preston, South Ribble and Lancashire City Deal.

The Strategic Case provide evidence of the problems that support the need for the intervention. Problems are identified in relation to the operation of the 

network.  The business case provides evidence of low average traffic speeds during the AM and PM peak periods impacting on key arterial and radial routes 

to and from the City.  Existing congestion levels also impact on the Warton Enterprise Zone reducing the overall accessibility of this important site.  This has 

led to the identification of three overarching objectives relating to unlocking housing development land, improving access to the Warton Enterprise Zone 

and reducing congestion.

A planning application for the scheme was submitted in May 2016, however, no details are provided with regard to the current status of the application.  

Details of land ownership required for the completion of the scheme are not articulated.  The scheme has interdependencies with the provision of the East-

West Link Road and the Strategic Case would benefit from further details.

 

The main stakeholder groups with an interest in the scheme have been identified. The scheme has strong and broad political support in LCC and has been 

subject to a comprehensive consultation as part of the planning application process.  

A total of 20 options are identified in the business case (including the preferred option).  As part of an initial sifting process these were reduced to seven.  A 

secondary sift then took place which assessed each option against the proposed secondary objectives and potential scheme costs resulting in the 

identification of the preferred scheme.

Permission Sought:

Overall Score

Page 31



Preston Western Distributor 
Outline Business Case - Independent Review 

 

 
 

  
Atkins   Version 3.0 I December 2017 13 
 

 
  

S9 Is there a robust 

assessment of different 

scheme options, including 

the reasons for any options 

being discounted?

Requirements 

Fully Met

S10 Have details of stakeholder 

and public consultation 

been provided?

Requirements 

Fully Met

A total of 20 options are identified in the business case (including the preferred option).  As part of an initial sifting process each of the options have been considered in high level terms 

against the scheme objectives and against a feasibility/deliverability assessment.  Following this process seven options were taken forward to a secondary sift which assessed each option 

against the proposed secondary objectives and potential scheme costs.   A summary of the process is included in the Strategic Case with further information provided in a supporting Options 

Appraisal report.

A consultation Report has been provided including details as to how the scheme has been refined through the consultation and stakeholder engagement process.

Page 32



Preston Western Distributor 
Outline Business Case - Independent Review 

 

 
 

  
Atkins   Version 3.0 I December 2017 14 
 

A.3. Economic Case 

 
 

Continued overleaf. 

Date of Review: 

2 1
Requirements fully met - No issues of note 

with the submission.

2
Requirements substantially met - Minor 

issues exist with the submission.  

3
Requirements partially met - Medium 

issues exist with the submission.  

Ref Item Status Comments

E1 Has a Value for Money 

Statement been provided, 

including a BCR?

Requirements 

Fully Met

E3 Is the basis for the 

calculation of the Present 

Value of Benefits (PVB) 

sufficiently robust?

Requirements 

Fully Met

Requirements not met - Critical issues exist 

with the submission.  

The Value for Money (VfM) statement reports a BCR of 2.29 which is classified as 'High VfM' by the Department for Transport.

E2 Are there any key 

assumptions relating to 

how the BCR has been 

derived?

Requirements 

Substantially 

Met

The benefits for the scheme have been derived from a SATURN traffic model known as Central Lancashire Transport Model (CLTM).  The study area of the CLTM extends over a wide area 

which has been modelled in three different levels of details namely: Area of detailed modelling (Detailed);  Rest of fully modelled area (ROFMA) and External Area (the rest of Great Britain).

The model has a Base Year (BY) of 2013 covering AM peak (8:00-9:00), Inter peak (average 10.00-16:00) and PM peak (17:00-18:00). The demand data used in developing of the BY model 

has been collected using a mixture of observed and synthetic data, constructed following WebTAG guidance. The travel data collected include origin-destination data across twenty six 

roadside survey locations in and around the study area as well as traffic counts and journey time data. The synthetic demand was established using data sources including from Census, NTS, 

and employment survey data. The modelled network was created from the ITN network which is provided by Ordnance Survey. The modelled BY assignments by and large satisfy  WebTAG 

criteria in terms of convergence, modelled flows and journey times. 

The forecast models were developed using growth predictions from National Trip End Model (NTEM) Version 6.2 for cars and Road Traffic Forecasts (RTF) 2015 for goods vehicles. 

Forecasting years developed were initially 2019 as Opening Year (OY) and 2041 as Design Year (DY) however later in the assessment the OY was moved 2022. For the Final Business Case 

(FBC) it is expected that the traffic forecasting and economic appraisal need to be re-undertaken for the finalised OY and DY which are likely to be 2022 and 2037 respectively. The economic 

appraisal for transport efficiency benefits was undertaken using DfT Transport User Benefits Analysis (TUBA) software version 1.9.8.

There are newer guidance and software including NTEM 7.2, July 2017 Data Book for calculating new values of times and operations and TUBA Version 1.9.9. The scheme promoter has 

undertaken sensitivity tests to establish the impact of the new guidance (except for the use of TUBA 1.9.9) however the submission for Outline Business Case (OBC) for the core option is 

based on the prevailing version of NTEM at the time of developing the original forecasts i.e. 6.2.

For the Final Business Case (FBC) the appointed consultant on behalf of the Scheme Promoter (SP) has agreed to produce a final set of forecast models and economic appraisal based on the 

latest guidance at the time of submission which would also include any further iteration of cost estimate that may be available at the time. 

The total monetised Present Value of  Benefits (PVB) for the scheme over a 60 year assessment period is £317m ( 2010 prices discounted to 2010).  The TUBA programme has been used to 

calculate the benefits in terms of user time savings, changes in vehicle operating costs, indirect tax revenues which amounts to  £273.8m.  A further net benefit of £43.2m is derived from 

other transport elements which can be monetised including construction and maintenance delay benefits; accident savings; air; noise and greenhouse savings.  The calculations of the 

schemes' various benefits and its allocation have been undertaken in accordance with WebTAG guidance.

 INDEPENDENT REVIEW

Project Title: Preston Western Distributor

Permission Sought: Conditional Approval 24/11/2017

ECONOMIC CASE

Overall Score

Atkins Comments:

The Value for Money (VfM) statement reports a BCR of 2.29, which is classified as 'High VfM' by the Department for Transport.

The benefits for the scheme have been derived from a SATURN model known as Central Lancashire Transport Model (CLTM), which has a base year of 2013 

and includes AM, Inter Peak and PM peak time periods. A Local Model Validation Report (LMVR) has been produced, setting out the development and 

validation of the base year model, which has been used as basis to assess the PWD scheme. The base year model generally accords with the required 

WebTAG criteria.

The forecast traffic models have been developed for 2019 and 2041 as the schemes’ opening and design years respectively. The opening year has 

subsequently moved to 2022 with 2037 being expected to be the new design year. The traffic growth used to construct future years’ trip matrices is based 

on forecasts in the prevailing National Trip End Model (NTEM) 6.2 for cars and Road Traffic Forecasts (RTF) 2015 for goods vehicles. Subsequent to 

development of the forecast models, new guidance has emerged with NTEM 7.2 and July 2017 Data Book which the latter provides updated values of time 

and vehicle operating cost.  The forecast assignments have been developed using fixed demand approach as opposed to Variable Demand Modelling 

(VDM). This was based on results of a test undertaken by the scheme promoter which showed that the proposed scheme may not cause inducing new 

demand or release suppressed demand in the core model area. DfT who is a major stakeholder on this scheme needs to express its view on this aspect of 

the modelling. It is a possibility that DfT would ask for impact of VDM to be investigated on the modelling results prior to submission of the PWD Final 

Business Case (FBC). A series of sensitivity tests have been undertaken to investigate the effect on the scheme BCR including travel demand variation, new 

guidance and the inclusion of trips generated by dependent development. The reported BCRs for these tests showed a range of 2.01 to 2.66.

A total of 20 options were identified in the business case (including the preferred option).  These were subject to two sifting stages initially against the 

scheme primary objectives and feasibility/deliverability criteria.  A total of 7 options were then taken forward from this initial process and assessed each 

option against the proposed secondary objectives and potential scheme costs.   The economic appraisal was however limited to the Core and Low-Cost 

options.

The Present Value of Costs (PVC) for the proposed schemes is £138.48m over a 60-year period which includes construction, risk allocation and maintenance 

costs. An Optimism bias of 15% has been included in the cost calculations for economic appraisal. The Present Value of Benefits (PVB) is reported as 

£317m. Out of total PVB, the benefits associated with user time savings, changes in vehicle operating costs, indirect tax revenues amount to £273.8m. The 

remaining net benefit of £43.2m arises from other monetised transport elements including construction and maintenance delay benefits; accident savings; 

air; noise and greenhouse savings.  

The increase in the GVA of the local economy associated with the proposed scheme has been derived as £144.1 million over the 60-year period which 

consists of £104.5m from unlocking development; £28m from Agglomeration and £10.8m output change in competitive markets.

The environmental and social impacts associated with PWD have been assessed either quantitively or qualitatively. These have included Noise, Air Quality, 

Greenhouse Gases, Landscape, Townscape, Historic Environment, Biodiversity, Water Environment, Physical Activity, Journey Quality, and Severance.  The 

majority of scheme benefits are associated with travel time savings for road users. There would be improvement in Safety, Noise and Air Quality. 

Disbenefits are reported from greenhouse gases emissions and increase in vehicle operating costs as well as a small decrease in indirect tax revenue. The 

reported non-monetised impacts of the scheme are normally shown to be beneficial or neutral except for slight adverse effect on the local landscape, 

historic environment and water environment and a moderate adverse impact on biodiversity.

The Distributional Impacts (DIs) of the proposed scheme have been assessed on different groups of people, including those potentially more vulnerable to 

the effects of transport. Eight elements of impact have been considered including Noise, Air Quality, Accessibility, Security, Severance, User Benefits 

(journey times and vehicle operating costs), Affordability and Accidents. 

The DI assessment showed that all income quintiles will receive a positive impact for the User Benefits and Air Quality; The most deprived areas will 

experience a positive impact on personal affordability; Most income groups will benefit from decrease in noise levels with the scheme in place. Children are 

expected to receive a slight beneficial effect from reduction in noise levels and accidents and improvement in air quality. There will also be a reduced 

number of accidents and thus casualties among the older people, pedestrians and cyclists.

4

Page 33



Preston Western Distributor 
Outline Business Case - Independent Review 

 

 
 

  
Atkins   Version 3.0 I December 2017 15 
 

 
 

Continued overleaf. 

 

 

 

E4 Is the basis for the 

calculation of the Present 

Value of Cost (PVC) 

sufficiently robust?

Requirements 

Substantially 

Met

E5 Has an appropriate level of 

optimism bias been 

applied?

Requirements 

Fully Met

E6 Has an appropriate level of 

risk cost been included?

Requirements 

Fully Met

E8 Have all other modelling 

assumptions been made 

clear?

Requirements 

Fully Met

E10 Are TUBA outputs robust? Requirements 

Fully Met

E11 Have all relevant options 

been modelled / 

appraised?

Requirements 

Substantially 

Met

E12 Have appropriate 

sensitivity tests been 

undertaken?

Requirements 

Fully Met

E14 Are forecast housing, jobs 

and GVA impacts provided 

robust / realistic?  

Requirements 

Fully Met

GVA is defined as  Transport-induced changes in jobs, multiplied by GVA per job, adjusted for changes in productivity (agglomeration and labour), plus savings in direct transport costs. The 

OBC submission determined that two types of the potential GVA benefits would be relevant for the PWD namely:

-Unlocking development and Productivity uplifts : More than 5000 dwellings are expected to be built in the North West Preston, most of which are dependent on (or unlocked by) the PWD. 

The unlocked dwellings form the basis for calculating the ‘indirect jobs’ created to support the new residents. The average GVA per service industry job in Lancashire was applied to calculate 

the GVA uplift.

-Productivity uplift will result from the PWD impact on agglomeration and output change in imperfectly competitive markets. The percentage productivity uplift due to agglomeration has 

been derived using a productivity elasticity for reductions in journey time. The second type of productivity benefit is the output change in imperfectly competitive markets. This captures the 

profit that firms make on additional outputs generated as a result of reduced transport costs. 

Based on the analysis reported there is a forecast increase in GVA to the local economy of £144.1 million over the 60 year period which can be directly related to the impacts of the PWD. 

This comprises:

Unlocked Development £104.5m

Agglomeration (Preston) £23.0m

Agglomeration (Warton) £5.8m

Output change in imperfectly competitive markets £10.8

E13 Has a completed AST been 

provided (with supporting 

worksheets where 

relevant)?

Requirements 

Fully Met

A full AST table is appended to the Business Case and summarised within the Economic Case.  Impacts have been assessed on a 7 point scale with a supporting qualitative statement - 

impacts are monetised where information is available from the appraisal.  The scheme results in the following impacts: 

-Majority of the benefits generated by the scheme are associated with travel time savings for business and non-business road users. 

-Improvement in Safety, Noise and Air Quality also provide a relatively modest contribution to the total monetised benefits of the scheme.

-Disbenefits are reported from greenhouse gases emissions and increase in vehicle operating costs. 

-There will be a small decrease in indirect tax revenue. 

The non-monetised impacts of the scheme have also been reported and the scheme is expected to: 

- Largely beneficial for journey quality due to reduction in driver frustration, fear of accidents and journey uncertainty as well as the improvement in Non-Motorised User (NMU) facilities;

-Have a slight beneficial impact on physical activity resulting from the provision of new facilities and slightly longer journeys;

-Have a slight beneficial impact on severance due to the provision of new facilities maintaining connectivity between communities;

-Have a slight adverse effect on the local landscape, historic environment and water environment and a moderate adverse impact on biodiversity;

-Have neutral effect on townscape

The proposed scheme Present Value of Costs (PVC) is £138.48m (2010 prices) over a 60 year period.  This comprises the following:

• Base cost - this includes preparation, construction, land/property and construction supervision costs.  

• Risk allocation - the value has been derived from the latest Quantified Risk Assessment (QRA) undertaken by Lancashire County Council and the ECI Contractor (Costain) in July 2017.

• Maintenance Costs Estimates:  Produced using the typical maintenance profiles, costs, durations and timings for new roads as per the DfT QUADRO manual (DMRB Volume 14).

• Optimism bias - this has been applied at a rate of 15% in line with WebTAG guidance (Unit A1.2). 

The basis of cost calculations can be considered satisfactory  at this stage of the process (OBC) however should an updated version of the scheme become available prior to submission of 

FBC, it is expected that the scheme promoter upgrade the submission (FBC) with the latest cost.

In addition an increase of 15% in the current PVC would result in a BCR which will be just under 2.0 which is a threshold between high and medium value for money.

Optimism bias has been applied at a rate of 15% - this is in line with the guidance for schemes at Conditional Approval stage, as set out in WebTAG Unit A1.2.  This is considered appropriate 

as it reflects the scheme cost preparation and likelihood of updating the cost prior to FBC submission.

Requirements 

Substantially 

Met

A Local Model Validation Report (LMVR) has been produced, setting out the development and validation of the base year SATURN  model, which has been used as basis to assess the 

scheme. The LMVR has been reviewed for the purpose this scheme.  It includes the information on performance of the  base year model against  the criteria set out in WebTAG Unit M3.1. 

The LMVR showed that the model generally accords with the observed data and use of Matrix Estimation has not significantly altered performance of the base year model. 

A technical note on the need for Variable Demand Modelling (VDM) has also been submitted for review. Within the criteria defined in WebTAG Unit M2, the model results (comparing the 

outputs from the fixed and elastic assignments) showed that the scheme may not result in VDM responses and therefore Fixed Demand assignments have been adopted for the forecasting.

A Traffic Forecasting Report (TFR) has been submitted which set out how the future year matrices were developed, including application of NTEM (TEMPro forecasts 6.2) , Road Traffic 

Forecasts 2015 (for freight) and key developments. Future year matrices have been controlled to national forecasts (TEMPro 6.2 and RTF 2015). The modelling forecast years are currently 

2019 and 2041 however the OY has been deferred to 2022. 

Given there is new guidance in place including NTEM 7.2 the consultant acting on behalf of the scheme promoter has agreed that a set of forecast based on the latest guidance would be 

submitted as part of FBC submission. 

In addition, the scheme promoter has been advised during the review process that there is a need to ensure that DfT and Higwhays England as major stakeholders for the scheme are 

content with the traffic modelling undertaken so far. It has been discussed at length with the scheme promoter that DfT may require VDM to be introduced to the modelling system prior to 

submission of FBC even if it is as a sensitivity test. 

Requirements 

Fully Met

The PWD scheme is expected to unlock the North West Preston strategic housing location (more than 5,000 dwellings) and provide direct links into Cottam development areas and Cottam 

Parkway Rail Station. WebTAG categorises new development that is dependent on the provision of a transport scheme as Dependent Development. In the case of the PWD scheme, 

dependency refers to land use development that cannot be realised without the introduction of the PWD.Given that the dependent development is conditional to the provision of the 

scheme and to ensure a

correct comparison between With and Without Scheme scenarios, WebTAG suggests that the dependent development should not be included into the Core demand matrices.

Instead, a separate assessment has been made to estimate the benefits of the PWD that are attributed to unlocking housing development. The outcome of the dependency test showed that 

the North West Preston development, with the exception of Haydock Grange site, is dependent on the PWD.

Assessment of the dependent development benefits of the PWD scheme reported the following monetised impact for the elements forming this test: 

-Planning gain arising from dependent new homes : £421.8m

-Less non-transport external costs caused by dependent new homes : -£251.2m

-Less transport external costs caused by dependent new homes (C) : -£118.8m

E15 Has dependent 

development been 

accounted for?

All assumptions are documented in the LMVR and Traffic Forecasting Reports, which are appended to the business case.

The TUBA outputs have been submitted and reviewed. 

A total of 20 options are identified in the business case (including the preferred option).  As part of an initial sifting process each of the options have been considered in high level terms 

against the scheme objectives and against a feasibility/deliverability assessment.  Following this process seven options were taken forward to a secondary sift which assessed each option 

against the proposed secondary objectives and potential scheme costs.   A summary of the process is included in the Strategic Case with further information provided in a supporting Options 

Appraisal report.  The economic appraisal was limited to the Core and Low Cost options.

A Quantified Risk Assessment (QRA) for the PWD has been undertaken by LCC and Costain in order  to determine the amount of risk to be applied to the base costs.   The latest version of 

QRA updated in July 2017 has been used for this purpose. The QRA identified about 280 risks  attributed to client or contractor. The risks were assessed and where possible addressed  

introducing mitigation measures leaving about 120 to be addressed.  An evaluation process was undertaken to attribute lowest, most probable and highest value to  the risks. 

The risks have also been subject to a Monte Carlo Risk Analysis which provides a normal bell curve output with different levels of probability namely 20%, 50% and 80%. The OBC states that 

for robustness the value of risks associated with 80%  probability which amounts to £8.43m has been included into the base cost. 

Should the scheme cost be reviewed prior to FBC submission, it is expected that this exercise is re-undertaken.

E7 Is the traffic modelling and 

forecasting approach / 

tools sufficiently robust?  

Has relevant supporting 

documentation been 

provided to substantiate 

that modelling undertaken 

is fit for purpose?

A series of sensitivity tests have been undertaken to investigate the effect on the scheme BCR including travel demand variation and the inclusion of trips generated by dependent 

development potentially coming before the scheme and changes in DfT recommended values of time. The sensitivity tests have been limited to TUBA analysis only. All other assessment 

results were assumed to be consistent between the Core and the sensitivity test scenarios. The reported BCRs for these tests showed a range of 2.01 to 2.66.

Page 34



Preston Western Distributor 
Outline Business Case - Independent Review 

 

 
 

  
Atkins   Version 3.0 I December 2017 16 
 

 

 
  

E16 Have all (relevant) 

Environmental & Social 

Impacts been adequately 

assessed?

Requirements 

Fully Met

E17 Have Distributional 

Impacts been assessed in a 

robust manner?

Requirements 

Fully Met

The assessment of Distributional Impacts (DIs) is to establish the impacts of transport interventions on different groups of people, including those potentially more vulnerable to the effects 

of transport. Consideration of the DIs of transport schemes in accordance with WebTAG Unit A4.2 requires eight DI including:

Noise, Air Quality,  Accessibility, Security, Severance, User Benefits (journey times and vehicle operating costs), Affordability and Accidents.

The DI assessment for this scheme showed the following overall conclusions:

-All income quintiles will receive a positive impact for the User Benefits and Air Quality, although some income groups will experience more significant benefits than the others.

-Income group 1 representing the most deprived areas will experience a positive impact on personal

affordability whilst the other income groups will have a negative impact.

- All income quintiles except income quintile 1 will benefit from decrease in noise levels with the scheme in place.

- Children, older people, pedestrians and cyclists will be affected by the scheme. Children are expected to receive a slight beneficial effect from change in noise levels as well as from 

reduction in accidents and improvement in air quality. Older people, pedestrians and cyclists are expected to benefit from accident impact as there will be a reduction in numbers of 

casualties among representatives of these two groups when the scheme is in built.

It is expected that prior to submission of FBC, the traffic model would be updated with the latest guidance and possibly introduction of VDM. Should this be the case, consideration should be 

given to re-undertaking of the assessment of elements of DIs which include inputs from the existing traffic model.

The environmental impacts considered and assessed for PWD include monetised impacts (Noise, Air Quality and Greenhouse gases) and non-monetised impacts (Landscape, Townscape, 

Historic Environment, Biodiversity and Water Environment).  The social impacts are not normally monetised and have therefore been assessed and reported using quantitative and 

qualitative information. They include Physical Activity, Journey Quality, and Severance. 

The monetised values of the environmental impacts over a 60 year assessment period include:

Nosie: £10.3m

Air Quality: £0.7m

Greenhouse gases: -£12.4m

A summary of the impact of the non-monetised impacts is shown above under E13. 

It is expected that prior to submission of FBC, the traffic model would be updated with the latest guidance and possibly introduction of VDM. Should this be the case, consideration should be 

given to re-undertaking of the assessment of elements of environmental impacts which include inputs from the existing traffic model.

Page 35



Preston Western Distributor 
Outline Business Case - Independent Review 

 

 
 

  
Atkins   Version 3.0 I December 2017 17 
 

A.4. Financial Case 

 
  

Date of Review: 

2 1
Requirements fully met - No issues of note 

with the submission.

2
Requirements substantially met - Minor 

issues exist with the submission.  

3
Requirements partially met - Medium 

issues exist with the submission.  

4
Requirements not met - Critical issues exist 

with the submission.  

Ref Item Status Comments

F1 Is the expected whole life 

cost of the scheme robust, 

including the base cost and 

risk allowance in outturn 

prices drawn from industry 

forecasts?

Requirements 

Fully Met

F2 Has a cost profile been 

provided showing year on 

year costs, and breakdown 

by cost type and parties on 

whom they fall?

Requirements 

Substantially 

Met

F3 Have details of key 

financial risks been 

provided and is the risk 

cost allowance robust?

Requirements 

Substantially 

Met

F4 Are funding sources to 

cover the full scheme cost 

clearly set out?

Requirements 

Fully Met

F5 Is there sufficient evidence 

to support third party / 

alternative funding 

contributions?

Requirements 

Substantially 

Met

F6 Have the impacts of third 

party / alternative funding 

not coming forward been 

considered?

Requirements 

Fully Met

F7 Has the long-term financial 

sustainability of the 

scheme been 

demonstrated, including 

robust plans to ensure the 

affordability of any 

ongoing costs for 

operation, maintenance 

and major capital 

renewals?

Requirements 

Partially Met

F8 Has evidence of 

appropriate S151 Officer 

sign-off been provided?

Requirements 

Fully Met

 INDEPENDENT REVIEW

Conditional Approval 18/12/2017

FINANCIAL CASE

The case sets out the scheme cost, which has been subject to some independent validation. It includes base costs, risk adjustment at the most robust 

estimate and 15% optimism bias in line with WebTAG guidance. A spend profile has been included which sets out year on year costs and breakdown by 

type of cost, but does not specify the parties on whom they fall. The key financial risks have been identified, an evaluation process has been undertaken 

along with a Monte Carlo Risk Assessment and the 80% probability risk cost has been applied to the base costs for robustness.  However, the risk register 

appears to contain risks for both the PWD and the EWLR and may therefore overestimate the overall risks for the PDW scheme. Funding has been 

identified for the full scheme costs and evidence has been provided of third party funds, including Highways England RIS monies. No alternative funding has 

been identified and the LGF monies are subject to having a good business case with high value for money. LCC will cover any increase in funding and this 

has been agreed in the form of a letter provided by the Section 151 Officer. Limited information is available on the long-term financial sustainability of the 

scheme and affordability including any ongoing costs for operation, maintenance and major capital renewals.

Preston Western Distributor

Overall Score

Atkins Comments:

Permission Sought:

Project Title: 

In developing the scheme, the client engaged in Early Contractor Involvement (ECI) with Costain to provide additional confidence in the scheme design and cost. An independent verification 

report was commissioned in January 2017, the report (Appendix K) recognised that there were differences in sectional totals, and raised some concerns that costs did not seem to match the 

design drawings provided and that there was some information missing, but on a general note the estimate appeared to be robust - the difference in total cost was £1.5m which represented 

1.17% of the schemes cost estimate at the time. Additional verification exercises are intended to be undertaken during further stages in the project. The cost estimate is based on BoQ 

informed by ground investigation, estimates from statutory authorities, land and compensation costs and QRA. The construction cost is estimated to be £110,644,087.75 and a cost 

breakdown is provided in Appendix L. 80% probability risk has been included at £8,433m. Optimism bias has been applied at 15% in line with WebTAG guidance. Total scheme cost is 

£161,597m.

A letter from the Section 151 Officer is included within Appendix R.

Spend profiles have been provided for the £161.6m cost of the scheme in the case in the form of bar charts showing preparation, supervision, construction and lands cost, and a breakdown 

of outline expenditure by year is provided in Appendix P. No information is provided on parties on whom they fall.

A QRA for the PWD has been undertaken in order to determine the amount of risk to be applied to the base costs. It is based on industry knowledge and experience from other schemes 

which have been constructed. The Risk Register (Appendix M) identifies 279 risks, these have been assessed and where possible addressed introducing mitigation measures leaving 122 

currently active.   However, the register appears to be for the PWD and the East West Link Road (EWLR) and as a consequence the risks may be overstated due to the inclusion of the EWLR 

in the register.  An evaluation process has been undertaken to attribute lowest, most probable and highest value to the risks. The risk sum for the client only in the most probable category is 

£4.361m, and for both client and contractor is £0.584m. 16 risks remain with a high value and these are set out in Appendix N. The risks have also been subject to a Monte Carlo Risk Analysis 

and the summary is provided in Appendix O.   For robustness the 80% probability value has been carried forward in the scheme cost estimates and the base cost adjusted by £8,432,824.26.

LGF - £58m (this is dependent on the scheme having a strong business case and high value for money); Highways England RIS - £25m (a letter confirming this contribution is provided in 

Appendix Q); City Deal  - £89.9m. Total funding secured is £172.9m. LCC has agreed to underwrite the impact of any timing difference in relation to receipt of funding for schemes delivered 

within the City Deal framework. Confirmation is provided via letter from Section 151 officer, included in Appendix R that any scheme cost increase will  be covered by LCC.

A letter confirming the Highways England contribution is provided in Appendix Q. The City Deal funding was agreed in Autumn 2013. The Growth Deal Funding is subject to having a good 

business case and high value for money. No further funding has been identified.

The release of City Deal Funds does not require receipt of confirmed funding from developers in advance of major road infrastructure provision. LCC has agreed to underwrite the impact of 

any timing differences in relation to receipt of funding for schemes delivered within the City Deal framework. In addition, LCC confirms that any scheme cost increase will be covered by LCC 

and this has been underwritten by the Section 151 officer (Appendix R).

In developing the scheme, the engagement of an ECI contractor and availability of a framework consultant offers an excellent opportunity to value engineer the scheme during development. 

This includes seeking out the most economic designs, materials and construction methodology. Additionally, it offers the opportunity to professionally challenge on the widest scale the 

concept and methods of achieving the aims of the scheme. This provides confidence that the final designed scheme will be the best and lowest cost option. There is no further information 

provided on long-term financial sustainability of the scheme in terms of affordability of on-going costs, maintenance and major capital renewals.

Page 36



Preston Western Distributor 
Outline Business Case - Independent Review 

 

 
 

  
Atkins   Version 3.0 I December 2017 18 
 

A.5. Commercial Case 
 

 

  

Date of Review: 

2 1
Requirements fully met - No issues of note 

with the submission.

2
Requirements substantially met - Minor 

issues exist with the submission.  

3
Requirements partially met - Medium 

issues exist with the submission.  

4
Requirements not met - Critical issues exist 

with the submission.  

Ref Item Status Comments

C1 Has a robust procurement 

strategy been clearly set 

out?

Requirements 

Fully Met

C2 Has consideration of 

different procurement 

options been 

demonstrated, including 

justification for selection of 

the preferred option?

Requirements 

Substantially 

Met

C3 Have the proposed 

payment mechanisms / 

pricing framework been 

identified?

Requirements 

Fully Met

C4 Have the procurement 

timescales been set out, 

and are they realistic?

Requirements 

Partially Met

C5 Have details of the 

proposed risk transfer / 

allocation been provided?

Requirements 

Fully Met

C6 Have details of contract 

management been 

provided, including 

contract timescales?

Requirements 

Substantially 

Met

C7 Has evidence of relevant 

approval been provided 

from Head of 

Procurement?

Requirements 

Fully Met

 INDEPENDENT REVIEW

Conditional Approval 18/12/2017

COMMERCIAL CASE

The case sets out the anticipated procurement strategy and lists the benefits of using this approach along with bodies that widely recognised this as the 

delivery mechanism for major civil engineering works. It is unclear exactly how the contract is set up, although the case refers to a 3 phase basis and early 

termination without penalty if value for money is not obtained at all times. Prompt and fair payment mechanisms are referenced, but no details of this are 

set out. The anticipated payment option/mechanism is stated for Phase 3, but will need to be confirmed prior to Full Business Case. Project Procurement 

Milestones are set out, but there is some uncertainty around the COP Public Inquiry timescales and a question around how realistic it is to set out the CPO 

to LCC Cabinet the day after the OBC is submitted to the LEP. A risk workshop has been held and informed a risk register that is a live document with joint 

ownership, which should lead to cost efficiencies. Contract management details are limited and the timescales are uncertain due to the season of 

commencement, this will need updating ahead of Full Business Case. The procurement strategy is supported by a letter from the Section 151 Officer, which 

although it states that the strategy is well established and will protect the authority from unnecessary risk and challenge, while looking to secure value for 

money through MEAT evaluation criteria, does not specifically reference the contract and early termination arrangements.

Preston Western DistributorProject Title: 

Overall Score

Atkins Comments:

Permission Sought:

LCC has chosen the ECI to procure works and this approach was signed off by LCC Cabinet Member for Highways and Transport in November 2015. An OJEU compliant exercise was 

undertaken to select the contractor to be involved in the scheme - details of the process are provided in report to the Cabinet Member included as Appendix S. The appointment is on a 3 

phase basis and the contract is structured so that it can be terminated without penalty should the arrangement be deemed not to be delivering the benefits to ensure value for money is 

obtained at all times. The case outlines that this is referred to in the S151 Officer Letter in Appendix R - which sets out that LCC has a well established procurement strategy that aims to 

protect the authority from unnecessary risk and challenge while looking to secure value for money using the MEAT evaluation criteria. It does not reference any contract arrangements with 

the contractor.

The case sets out the industry recognised benefits of using this approach as opposed to the "traditional method" in bullet point format and how it is recognised widely by many public and 

private sector bodies as the delivery mechanism for major civil engineering projects. 

Phase 1 and 2 will utilise the Professional Services contract and Phase 3 will be undertaken under the Engineering Construction Contract (ECC). The case states that prompt and fair payment 

mechanisms will be applied throughout the supply chain. For Phase 3 it sets out the 6 main payment options within the ECC and states that the current anticipation is that the NEC Option C 

procurement approach will be used for PWD construction contract - target cost contract with an activity schedule where the out-turn financial risks are shared between client and contractor 

in an agreed proportion. 

The case sets out the procurement programme milestones to commencement of works. It also highlights that for some parts of the CPO Inquiry procedure there is no certainty in the 

timelines. The programme has been guided by experience on previous projects involving public inquiries.  Programme dates are also presented in the Management Case which indicates 

slightly different dates - both programmes should be standardised.

Risks and associated cost estimates are provided in the Risk Register (Appendix M). The risk register was initially drafted following a risk workshop and the case sets out that this is a live 

document that will be updated and adjustments to risks, costs and responsibilities amended as the detail design progresses. The register is under joint ownership under the ECI. 

The contract management arrangements will be administered by an ECC Project Manager and Supervisor during the implementation stage. The case refers to roles for the project being set 

out within the Project Governance section of the Management Case. It is anticipated that the construction contract length will be 3-3.5 years. The variance is explained as being uncertainty 

of the season of commencement which will influence how and when ecological and environmental mitigation measures can be undertaken.

A letter from the Section 151 Officer is included within Appendix R.

Page 37



Preston Western Distributor 
Outline Business Case - Independent Review 

 

 
 

  
Atkins   Version 3.0 I December 2017 19 
 

A.6. Management Case 
 

 

Continued overleaf. 

Date of Review: 

3 1
Requirements fully met - No issues of note 

with the submission.

2
Requirements substantially met - Minor 

issues exist with the submission.  

3
Requirements partially met - Medium 

issues exist with the submission.  

4
Requirements not met - Critical issues exist 

with the submission.  

Ref Item Status Comments

M1 Has the proposed 

governance / 

organisational structure 

been provided?  Does it 

provide a robust means of 

overseeing project delivery 

with appropriate skills / 

experience?

Requirements 

Substantially 

Met

M2 Does the project 

programme demonstrate 

realistic delivery 

timescales?  Does it 

provide an appropriate 

level of detail?  Have 

critical path items and 

dependencies been clearly 

identified?

Requirements 

Partially Met

M3 Have required statutory 

powers and consents been 

obtained?  Are there any 

conditions to the powers, 

consents or funding and do 

they pose any additional 

risks? Is a plan in place to 

demonstrate how these 

conditions will be met?

Requirements 

Substantially 

Met

M4 Have details of the 

reporting, assurance and 

approval process been 

provided (including 

gateways in scheme 

development / delivery)?

Requirements 

Fully Met

M5 Has evidence of scheme 

delivery been provided, to 

demonstrate that the 

delivery body has the 

capability and means to 

successfully implement the 

scheme?

Requirements 

Partially Met

M6 Has a Risk Management 

Strategy been provided, 

setting out how risks have 

been identified, their likely 

impact, appropriate 

mitigation, and how the 

risks will be managed (and 

by whom)?

Requirements 

Partially Met

M7 Does the Risk Register 

cover all foreseeable risks 

with no obvious 

omissions? Are suitable 

mitigation measures 

proposed? Is the Risk 

Register updated on a 

regular basis?

Requirements 

Substantially 

Met

Conditional Approval 18/12/2017

MANAGEMENT CASE

The case sets out the governance structure and project delivery team and the key reporting lines for the programme management and delivery of the 

scheme. There are inconsistencies in the project programme within the management and commercial cases that need addressing, along with the realistic 

timescale for making the CPO. Planning permission has been granted, but the scheme is dependent on a CPO and SRO and details around the impacts are 

not clearly set out in the business case. Details of the reporting, approvals and assurance process are clearly set out. Limited evidence on scheme delivery 

has been supplied, and there is no information on how lessons learned have been applied to the delivery of this scheme. There is also limited information 

on the risk management strategy, although a quantified risk register is included that provides details of the risks, owners and mitigation measures. The 

communications strategy for the PWD is still currently being prepared and needs to be provided ahead of Full Business Case. A logic map has been provided 

as part of the monitoring and evaluation plan, but it is unclear how supporting objectives 4 and 8 fit into the logic map. In regard to the monitoring and 

evaluation plan, this sets out the metrics to be measured, but it is unclear how each of the metrics is directly related to measuring if the primary and 

supporting objectives have been met. The plan also sets out that a value for money assessment will be undertaken upon completion of the scheme, but no 

details on how this process will be done are included. 

Preston Western Distributor

The governance structure for the programme management and delivery of the scheme is set out in Figure 7-2. The Lancashire LEP is responsible for overall governance of the City Deal, 

Transport for Lancashire is responsible for the transport elements of the IDP, the City Deal Programme Board is responsible for operational delivery, the Project Board is responsible for the 

delivery of the project, the City Deal Infrastructure Steering Group is responsible for approval of technical detail of projects. Alongside this the project delivery team is set out in detail along 

with information on discipline leads and reporting structures. The skills and experience of the Project Manager are not included. Monthly update reports will be provided by the Project 

Manager to the City Deal Infrastructure Steering Group, covering scheme design, CPO process, funding, land and planning and when funding is secured and contracts are let, adherence to 

programme budget, issues and decisions made within the tolerances granted and exceptions.

The statutory powers and consents have not been obtained as of yet. The scheme is dependent on an CPO / Side Road Order / land acquisition process including a potential public inquiry. 

TfL requires promoters to provide an absolute minimum 10% contribution towards total scheme construction cost and 100% of any increase in cost once TfL has granted Provisional 

Approval. This has been agreed in the Section 151 Officer letter provided in Appendix R. The release of City Deal Funds does not require receipt of confirmed funding from developers in 

advance of major road infrastructure provision. LCC has agreed to underwrite the impact of any timing difference in relation to receipt of funding for schemes delivered within the City Deal 

framework. The LEP will only approve schemes demonstrating high value for money, with a BCR greater than 2. The Director for Financial Resources will sign off all value for money 

assessments as true and accurate - and to avoid potential conflict of interest will not have any involvement in scheme development or promotion.  The PWD is a DfT retained scheme and 

requires Ministerial approval, however, the DfT have confirmed that no DfT approval is required at this stage.

As per the TfL Assurance Framework, LCC will submit a quarterly monitoring report setting out progress on scheme preparation and delivery, which will include a regularly updated QRA. TfL 

has established a consultant panel with a minimum of two independent specialist consultants to undertake business case scrutiny, reporting to the officer with overall responsibility for 

business case scrutiny. The LEP Board Director for Strategic Transport will have an advisory role in supporting scheme assessment and approval arrangements. The TfL three stage approval 

process is set out - programme entry; conditional approval; full business case. The guidance setting out expectations of DfT in relation to retained schemes is set out including the 

requirements for signing off funding approval.

Limited information is provided in regard to evidence of scheme delivery - it notes two projects and that lessons learnt from the delivery of the projects have been shared across the 

highways services to ensure widespread learning. These details should be included to demonstrate how they have been applied to this project. 

Risks associated with delivery of the LEP investment programme are managed according to the overall monitoring responsibilities set out in the LEP's Accountability Framework. This 

requires risk registers to be produced and maintained for individual schemes once approved. The Steering Group has overall responsibility for governance and risk associated with the 

delivery of the PWD scheme. It is responsible for managing and overseeing the risk management strategy and where appropriate agreeing and undertaking actions to mitigate key risks. No 

detailed information of the risk management strategy is included, only that the Programme Manager is responsible for maintaining and updating the Risk Register and planning for mitigating 

any risks which do not require escalation. The governance structure clearly defines and sets out the arrangements for decision making and approvals including the responsibilities regarding 

risk on the PWD. 

The PWD project risk register (Appendix M) is owned by the Project Manager and updated regularly. The risk register at this stage in the programme concentrates on risks to scheme cost 

and programme, however, the register also appears to include risks associated with the EWLR and as a consequence may overestimate the quantified risks. The use of ECI providing a direct 

market link to costs and efficient construction methodology ensure the risk register is up to date and as accurate as possible in quantifying the risks. Each risk has been allocated a 'risk 

owner' depending on the risk type and its proximity (i.e. when it is likely to be realised/removed). The last update to the risk register was July 2017. It includes risks such as planning delay, 

political decisions, land acquisition issues, legislative delays etc.

 INDEPENDENT REVIEW

Project Title: 

Permission Sought:

Overall Score

Atkins Comments:

A high level delivery programme is provided in Appendix T and is owned by the Project Manager and is reviewed and updated as necessary prior to formal progress meetings. Changes to the 

project programme that could impact upon key milestones within the development and delivery of the scheme are communicated to the Project Board. The table in this case shows the 

month and year for each key milestone. Programme details are also presented in the Commercial Case which indicates slightly different dates - both programme tables should be 

standardised. No information is provided in the way of critical path items and dependencies.

Page 38



Preston Western Distributor 
Outline Business Case - Independent Review 

 

 
 

  
Atkins   Version 3.0 I December 2017 20 
 

 

 

  

M8 Is an appropriate time-

based plan in place for 

proactive communications 

and media enquiries?

Requirements 

Partially Met

M9 Is there a clear 

intervention logic for how 

the outcomes will be 

achieved? (e.g. logic map)

Requirements 

Substantially 

Met

M10 Has a Monitoring & 

Evaluation Plan been 

provided that identifies 

proposed data / 

performance  indicators to 

monitor against the 

scheme objectives?

Requirements 

Partially Met

M11 Are there clear proposals 

to undertake evaluation of 

the overall effectiveness of 

the scheme? 

Requirements 

Partially Met

A logic map is included as part of the M&E Plan. It is not entirely clear how supporting objectives 4 and 8 fit into the logic map?

An outline M&E Plan has been prepared and is included in Appendix U. It will be updated as part of the Full Business Case submission. The full M&E Plan will provide further detail on how 

the scheme inputs, outputs and outcomes are to be monitored. The outputs and outcomes will be monitored using specific metrics. The Growth Deal Monitoring and Evaluation Framework 

guidance sets out the requirement for monitoring and evaluation of metrics. These consist of Input Core Metrics: expenditure, funding breakdown, in-kind resources provided; Output Core 

Metrics: housing unit starts and completions; Project Specific Outputs and Outcomes: total length of newly built roads, total length of new cycleways and type of infrastructure delivered - 

these will all be measured until the scheme is completed. Journey time measurement and day-to-day travel will be monitored on an annual basis, along with accident and casualty rates. It is 

not clear how these metrics are related to all of the primary and supporting objectives.

TfL will publish the PWD major scheme business case on its website, as will LCC alongside publicising it through regular communication channels. The OBC and supporting documentation 

will be made available for inspection and independent assurance by TfL's independent Assurance Team. The communications strategy for the project is framed within the wider 

communications strategy for the City Deal. The City Deal Communications and Marketing Strategy is not included but the proposed overarching approach and activities have been identified 

by communications staff from LCC, PCC, SRBC and the HCA. They are intended to establish foundations for successful communication and have directly influenced the schedule of work 

outlined in the IDP (including PWD). The activities are reviewed annually throughout the City Deal lifetime. A specific PWD Communications Strategy is currently being developed and will be 

made available to in advance of the funding decision. The PWD has gone through a significant consultation process over the past 3 years to select the preferred route and support the 

planning application.

The M&E Plan sets out that an assessment of the value for money of the scheme will be required upon completion - this is undertaken by considering the evidence of the outputs and 

outcomes monitored. No further details are included.

Page 39



 

© Atkins Ltd except where stated otherwise. 
 
The Atkins logo, ‘Carbon Critical Design’ and the strapline 
‘Plan Design Enable’ are trademarks of Atkins Ltd. 
 

Neil Stockley 
Atkins 
The Exchange 
2nd Floor, New York St., 
Manchester 
M1 4HN 
 

Neil.Stockley@atkinsglobal.com 
+44 161 245 3452 

Page 40



LEP – Sub Committee

LEP - Transport for Lancashire Committee

Private and Confidential: No

Wednesday, 10 January 2018

Preston Railway Station

Report Author: Dave Colbert, Tel: 01772 534501, Specialist Advisor Transport
 Planning, dave.colbert@lancashire.gov.uk

Executive Summary

Preston Station is the busiest station in the North West outside of Manchester and 
Liverpool city centres and one of the busiest in the North of England.  It is a major 
interchange between West Coast Main Line services operated by Virgin Trains and 
Trans-Pennine Express and a range of inter and intra-regional and local services 
operated by Northern, including the increasingly important east-west corridor linking 
Lancashire with North and West Yorkshire.  Despite an estimated 5 million 
passenger trips annually and a further 1.49 million interchanges, the station has 
received limited/piecemeal investment over several decades, resulting in a poor 
passenger experience and preventing the station from contributing towards the 
wider growth and development of the city centre.  Furthermore, there are a number 
of key issues that need to be addressed in order for Preston Station to become ‘HS2 
ready' by 2026.

Creation of a high quality, contemporary transport hub with enhanced passenger 
and commercial facilities will enable the station to serve people and businesses 
better.  This will be particularly important once HS2 becomes operational in 2026, 
reinforcing Preston’s role as the North West’s major rail hub north of Manchester 
and access point for HS2 services for a large catchment area with a population of 
over 1.4m people extending across much of Lancashire and South Cumbria.

The LEP and partners will need to develop and maintain close working relationships 
with a range of organisations to ensure transformation of Preston Station 
progresses.  Positioning station transformation at the core of Lancashire's local 
response to the Government's recently published Industrial Strategy will be essential 
in influencing future national rail investment priorities.  Further work is therefore 
necessary to fully understand and quantify the wider economic growth and 
productivity benefits that the station's transformation could deliver.  Specialist 
consultants will need to be engaged to undertake this work, which will also need to 
include forecasts of future passenger demand, particularly for when HS2 services 
begin operating in 2026.

Recommendations

Page 41

Agenda Item 7



The Transport for Lancashire Committee is asked:

(i) To recommend that the Lancashire Enterprise Partnership (LEP) Board 
support the commissioning of a study to examine and quantify the wider 
economic growth and productivity benefits that the transformation of 
Preston Station could deliver, this work to also include forecasts of future 
passenger demand particularly for when HS2 services begin operating in 
2026, and

(ii) To request the LEP Board agree to fund the study from its strategic case-
making budget.

Background and Advice

Central Lancashire is a transport hub of national significance, providing most of 
Lancashire's connections to the West Coast Main Line, the M6 and, in the future, to 
HS2.  Preston station lies approximately mid-way between Glasgow and London on 
the West Coast Main Line and with an estimated 5 million passenger trips annually 
and a further 1.49 million interchanges, is the busiest station in the North West 
outside of Manchester and Liverpool city centres and one of the busiest in the North 
of England1.  Virgin West Coast, Trans-Pennine Express and Northern currently 
provide daytime passenger services to a wide range of destinations, with the 
overnight 'Caledonian Sleeper' service between London and Scotland also making a 
call.

Over the last ten years, the number of passengers using Preston Station have 
increased by 44%.  In addition to West Coast Main Line services to London, 
Birmingham, Glasgow and Edinburgh, there are also regular direct trains to 
Manchester city centre, Manchester Airport and Liverpool, and to Leeds in the 
increasingly important east-west corridor linking Lancashire with North and West 
Yorkshire.  The station provides connections into these services from Blackpool, 
Blackburn and East Lancashire, Lancaster and the Lake District.  It is therefore a 
critical asset for the city and for Lancashire as a whole, serving as a gateway for an 
extensive catchment of communities further afield, particularly for connectivity with 
the West Coast Main Line.

The station’s development is of fundamental importance as a driver of economic 
growth aspirations across Lancashire.  As outlined in the Preston, South Ribble and 
Lancashire City Deal, ambitious plans for new employment and commercial 
development are being delivered across Central Lancashire with the potential to 
create around 20,000 net new private sector jobs, alongside the delivery of over 17,000 
new homes.  Enhanced rail connectivity could act as a major stimulus for further 
employment growth in Lancashire, potentially contributing to the LEP's objective of an 
additional 50,000 new jobs by 2025 and in turn supporting the broader growth objectives 
of the Northern Powerhouse.

1 The comparable figures for Crewe are 3 million and 1.48 million respectively

Page 42



Creation of a high quality, contemporary transport hub at Preston Station with 
enhanced passenger and commercial facilities will enable the station to serve people 
and businesses better.  This will be particularly important once HS2 becomes 
operational in 2026, reinforcing Preston’s role as the North West’s major rail hub 
north of Manchester.  Establishing an HS2 Growth Strategy as recommended by the 
HS2 Growth Taskforce2 for Preston Station will be an important element to achieving 
this.  In addition, Network Rail has also requested the City and County Councils 
prepare a long-term vision for the station to inform its strategic review of West Coast 
Main Line capacity north of Crewe.

Whilst Preston Station has retained its original Victorian fabric, it has received 
limited/piecemeal investment over several decades, resulting in a poor passenger 
experience and preventing the station from contributing towards the wider 
commercial development of the city centre.  The station building lacks presence, 
resulting in poor first impressions of the city for visitors and poor customer 
satisfaction, and has poor DDA compliance.  A number of key issues need 
addressing, both from a rail operating perspective, particularly once HS2 services 
begin operating in 2026, and from a passenger perspective in terms of access, 
circulation and safety.  These issues include:

 poor use of platforms;
 poor accessibility and circulation;
 track and pedestrian capacity;
 dated and unsuitable facilities;
 poor retail and commercial offer in the station;
 lack of profile within the city; 
 poor vehicular circulation and parking locations;
 poor inter-relationships with adjacent / nearby land,
 underused land resources; and
 pedestrian safety.

The deteriorating environment and increasing maintenance costs of structures 
including platforms, overbridges and subways are all issues that modernisation of 
the station could eliminate.

Pedestrian circulation around the station is currently very constrained and provided 
for largely by a narrow footbridge that does not support efficient cross-platform 
interchange.  The only other means of moving between platforms is via a subway 
towards the southern end of the station, which again is narrow and does not offer a 
suitable environment for passengers.  At the northern end of the station, the main 
entrance is small and leads directly to a cramped, short-stay car park and taxi rank.  
The most active entrance, from Butler Street on the eastern side of the station, is 
capable of accommodating current footfall and results in pedestrians funnelling 
directly onto the narrow footbridge due to insufficient space.  A second entrance from 
Butler Street featuring ticket vending machines and customer information screens 
opened in June 2017.

2 High Speed 2: Get Ready, A report to the Government by the HS2 Growth Taskforce, March 2014

Page 43



Preston Station currently has six operational through platforms and two bay 
platforms at its southern end.  Whilst platforms 3 and 4 are relatively spacious, 
platforms 1 and 2 are narrow and very busy throughout the day.  These platforms 
generally accommodate Blackpool, Liverpool and East Lancashire services, the 
former typically carrying passengers with large amounts of luggage and a high 
proportion of passengers that require assistance.  Unlike other platforms, there is no 
ramp access to these platforms and the lift is at the southern end of the station, 
furthest away from any entrance.  These issues need considering in the context of 
the near 1.5 million interchanges per annum that take place, many of which will be 
between long distance services on the West Coast Main Line and more local 
services to Blackpool and East Lancashire.

Preston benefitted significantly from the West Coast Main Line Route Modernisation 
programme completed in December 2008, with journey times to and from London 
reduced to just over two hours utilising 'Pendolino' tilting trains.  More recently, the 
completion of electrification works between Liverpool and Manchester / Wigan as 
part of Network Rail's £1bn+ Great North Rail Project (GNRP) has enabled the 
introduction of brand new electric trains on Trans-Pennine Express services between 
Scotland, Preston, Manchester Piccadilly and Manchester Airport via Wigan North 
Western.  In addition, refurbished four carriage electric trains now operate the hourly 
service between Preston and Liverpool Lime Street / Liverpool South Parkway, 
providing a significant increase in seating capacity on this route.

Network Rail continues to progress the upgrade and electrification of the direct route 
between Manchester and Preston via Chorley and the Preston to Blackpool North 
line, both due for completion in 2018.  This corridor, which links Preston with 
Manchester city centre and Manchester Airport, is of strategic importance not only to 
much of Lancashire, but also to Cumbria and Scotland.  The GNRP will deliver a 
journey time of just over 30 minutes between Preston and central Manchester by 
Trans-Pennine Express services, with the line speed raised up to 100mph in places.  
Stations in central Manchester provide connections for onward travel to and from a 
range of other key destinations across the North, including Leeds3 and Sheffield.  
Recent economic and employment growth in Lancashire has been strongest in this 
corridor, with added potential to grow the business travel market in Lancashire whilst 
at the same time helping to reduce congestion on the parallel M61.

The new Trans-Pennine Express franchise announced in December 2015 includes a 
commitment to introduce brand new 125mph five carriage electric trains on services 
in this corridor with more seats; service frequency will also increase, including at 
weekends.  Similarly, Northern will introduce brand new electric trains on services 
between Blackpool North and Manchester Airport as part of its wider 'Northern 
Connect' network.  In addition, brand new or refurbished diesel trains will operate 
'Northern Connect' services between Barrow-in-Furness and Manchester Airport (via 
Wigan) and Blackpool North and York via Preston, East Lancashire and Leeds.  
There will be on average five trains per hour between Preston and Manchester (four 
serving Piccadilly of which three continue to Manchester Airport and one serving 

3 It is currently almost as quick to travel from Preston to Leeds by changing trains in Manchester as it is to use 
the direct service via Burnley and Bradford.

Page 44



Victoria).  For passengers, the contrast between the station and on-board experience 
will quickly become even starker.

Following completion of HS2 Phase 1 between London and the West Midlands in 
2026, Preston will be the only intermediate stop on the London to Glasgow and 
Edinburgh services.  Phase 2a will open the following year, extending HS2 to Crewe 
and reducing journey times between Preston and London to 1 hour 28 minutes, a 
reduction of over 45 minutes on the current journey time.  By 2033, when HS2 Phase 
2b is operational, HS2 services will be able to travel as far Golborne just to the south 
of Wigan on new infrastructure, reducing journey times by a further 10 minutes.

There are a number of key issues that need to be addressed in order for Preston 
Station to become ‘HS2 ready' by 2026.  None of the through platforms will be capable 
of accommodating 400m long HS2 trains from 2033 when Glasgow and Edinburgh 
services combine.  Furthermore, level access between trains and platforms is likely to 
be a requirement from 2026.  In general, the track layout within the station and the 
junctions to the south are not able to accommodate growth associated with long-term 
conditional outputs.  Both track and signalling infrastructure are also in need of 
renewal.

In future, Preston station will serve as the access point for HS2 services for a large 
catchment area with a population of over 1.4m people extending across much of 
Lancashire and South Cumbria and including Barrow, Blackburn, Blackpool, Burnley, 
Kendal, Lancaster and Windermere.  Journey times between London and 79 stations 
locally with direct services to/from Preston will reduce by up to 80 minutes following 
completion of the full HS2 network in 2033.  It is therefore essential that Preston 
Station be transformed into a modern, 21st century facility through which passengers 
from these stations can interchange with HS2 services in comfortable surroundings.

Stations are increasingly becoming economic destinations of choice in their own 
right, acting as a catalyst for economic growth and regeneration.  A fully HS2-
integrated station at Preston will complement ambitious plans drawn up by the 
County Council, Preston City Council and partners for a comprehensive commercial, 
retail and residential development programme for the city centre as well as 
supporting wider City Deal priorities such as Cuerden and strategic employment 
locations such as the Samlesbury and Warton Enterprise Zones.  Transformation of 
the station will enhance its presence in the city and relationship to existing and 
proposed development, including UCLan's £200m city centre campus redevelopment 
and the leisure-led transformation of City Centre North.  This includes the potential to 
create a new business district close to the station to provide Preston with the high 
quality, premium business investment location currently missing from the city centre 
and necessary to attract professional, financial and business services together with 
ICT, digital and creative industries.

The LEP and partners will need to develop and maintain close working relationships 
with a range of organisations including the Department for Transport, Transport for 
the North, Network Rail, HS2 and the wider rail industry to ensure transformation of 
Preston Station progresses.  Positioning station transformation at the core of 
Lancashire's local response to the Government's recently published Industrial 

Page 45



Strategy will be essential in influencing future national rail investment priorities given 
the raised profiles of rail centres of less strategic importance elsewhere in the North.

Further work is therefore necessary to examine and quantify the wider economic 
growth and productivity benefits that the station's transformation could deliver.  
Specialist consultants will need to be engaged to undertake this work, which will also 
need to include forecasts of future passenger demand, particularly for when HS2 
services begin operating in 2026.  This in turn can inform further investigations of 
station capacity in terms of pedestrian circulation and any potential impact on future 
access requirements.  The Preston City Transport Plan commissioned by the County 
Council in April 2017 and awarded to Mott MacDonald is considering station access 
within the context of a comprehensive accessibility, movement and connectivity 
strategy for the city centre.

Page 46



LEP – Sub Committee

LEP - Transport for Lancashire Committee

Private and Confidential: No

Wednesday, 10 January 2018

Department for Transport Consultation: Shaping the Future of England's 
Strategic Roads

Report Author: Dave Colbert, Tel: 01772 534501, Specialist Advisor Transport Planning
dave.colbert@lancashire.gov.uk

Executive Summary

The Government will shortly be taking decisions about priorities for investment in the 
next Road Investment Strategy period (RIS2) covering the financial years 2020/21 
to 2024/25.  The Department for Transport is now consulting stakeholders on 
Highways England's Strategic Road Network Initial Report and the process through 
which it will determine whether the Initial Report is sufficiently robust.  A 
complementary consultation on proposals to establish a Major Road Network in 
England is also due to commence shortly.

Recommendation

The Transport for Lancashire Committee is asked to note the update provided in 
report.

Background and Advice

From April 2020, the Government will fund investment in the Strategic Road Network 
(SRN) from the National Roads Fund, resources by the Vehicle Excise Duty paid by 
motorists in England.  The Government will shortly be taking decisions about 
priorities for investment in the next Road Investment Strategy period (RIS2) covering 
the financial years 2020/21 to 2024/25.  The Department for Transport is now 
consulting stakeholders on Highways England's Strategic Road Network Initial 
Report and the process through which it will determine whether the Initial Report is 
sufficiently robust.  The closing date for responses is Wednesday 7th February 2018 
and full details are available on the Department for Transport's website at:

https://www.gov.uk/government/consultations/shaping-the-future-of-englands-
strategic-roads-ris2

Page 47

Agenda Item 8

https://www.gov.uk/government/consultations/shaping-the-future-of-englands-strategic-roads-ris2
https://www.gov.uk/government/consultations/shaping-the-future-of-englands-strategic-roads-ris2


A complementary consultation on proposals to establish a Major Road Network in 
England is also due to commence shortly1.

The SRN comprises nationally significant routes including most motorways and the 
most important 'A' class roads.  Highways England operates, maintains and 
improves the SRN on behalf of the Secretary of State for Transport.  The SRN is 
4,300 miles long, accounting for only 2.4% of all roads in England by length but 
carrying a third of all traffic and two thirds of all heavy goods vehicle traffic.  Roads 
comprising the SRN generally exhibit some of the following characteristics:

 Link the main centres of population;
 Facilitate access to major ports, airports and rail terminals;
 Enable access to peripheral regions; or
 Provide key cross-border routes to Scotland and Wales.

In Lancashire, the size of the SRN has reduced progressively since the late 1990s 
with the responsibility for many former trunk roads transferred to the local highway 
authorities (Lancashire County Council, Blackburn with Darwen Council and 
Blackpool Council).  The SRN currently comprises the following:

 M6 Greater Manchester Boundary to Cumbria Boundary
 M55 M6 Junction 32 (Broughton) to Junction 4 (Peel Hill)
 M58 M6 Junction 26 (Orrell) to Merseyside Boundary
 M61 M6 Junction 30 (Bamber Bridge) to Greater Manchester Boundary
 M65 M6 Junction 29 (M6) to Junction 10 (Burnley)
 M66 A56 (Edenfield) to Greater Manchester Boundary
 A56 M66 (Edenfield) to M65 Junction 8 (Hapton)
 A585 M55 Junction 3 (Kirkham) to Fleetwood

RIS2 will cover investment in the operation, maintenance and renewal of the existing 
SRN as well as new enhancements.  It will also include completion of any 
outstanding schemes from the first Road Investment Strategy period and a number 
of other schemes already announced such as the Lower Thames Crossing.  These 
schemes are likely to require all of the funding available for SRN enhancements in 
the first half of the RIS2 period; hence, any new schemes agreed in RIS2 would be 
for construction later in that period and beyond.  Furthermore, as part of RIS2 the 
Government will consider funding improvements on the local road network or an 
alternative mode of transport where there is clear evidence that such investment will 
be of benefit to the SRN.

The Government has five key aims for RIS2:

 Economy – providing investment that yields increased productivity and 
economic output;

 Network Capability – providing a network that can meet future demands and 
support growth for the long term;

1 At the time of writing (21/12/17), details of this consultation were not yet available.

Page 48



 Safety – although England has some of the safest roads in the world the 
Government remains committed to reducing deaths and injuries on the road 
network;

 Integration – very few journeys start or end on the SRN; almost all will use 
other transport networks, so the Government will seek new opportunities for 
linking the SRN with local roads, major roads and other modes of transport; and

 Environment – the Government will continue to drive the transition to a 
decarbonised network that is environmentally and locally sensitive and will 
continue to tackle the negative external impacts of the SRN, with RIS2 to make 
a positive contribution to the environment and air quality.

Highways England's Initial Report comprises an informative statement of its priorities 
(safety, customer service and delivery) and the progress it has made to date.  The 
report also sets out how the company has thought about future investment needs 
following extensive consultation with customers, stakeholders and the Secretary of 
State for Transport as shareholder, as well as improving its understanding of SRN 
infrastructure, performance and future challenges.  Highways England is proposing 
that investment in the SRN over the next 20 years should focus on achieving 
consistency around four categories of road:

 Smart motorways (routes with the highest demand, evolving with technology);
 Conventional motorways (in their current form);
 Expressways (a new concept for the busiest 'A' class roads in the SRN, with 

better design, technology and on-road response and alternative roads for non-
motorised users and slow vehicles);

 All-purpose trunk roads (the remaining 'A' class roads in the SRN.

As part of the consultation, the DfT is seeking views on the proposed four categories 
and the development of Expressways.  The new 'Expressway' concept essentially 
comprises the upgrading of a number of existing 'A' class roads in the SRN to 
provide motorway performance and enhanced technology similar to that already 
being introduced as part of current 'Smart' motorway upgrades.  Expressways will be 
dual carriageways with grade-separated junctions; non-motorised users and slow 
moving vehicles will not be permitted.

There are ten consultation questions in all, most of which will require careful 
consideration in order to answer effectively.  Of particular interest to LEPs will be the 
questions relating to the current size of the SRN, specifically whether there are local 
roads the DfT should consider including in the SRN and conversely, whether there 
are roads currently in the SRN that should be removed.  Responses to these 
particular questions would be best prepared alongside any response to the 
complementary consultation on proposals to establish a Major Road Network.

Page 49



Page 50


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the meeting held on 20th November 2017
	5 Transport for Lancashire - Proposed Amendments to the LEP Assurance Framework
	Appendix 'A'

	6 Preston Western Distributor Conditional Approval Application
	Appendix A - Atkins Review Report

	7 Preston Railway Station
	8 Department for Transport Consultation: Shaping the Future of England's Strategic Roads

